Public Document Pack

Y 4, North
-‘h Northamptonshire

e COUNCIl

Meeting: Planning Policy Executive Advisory Panel
Date: Monday 21st February 2022

Time: 9.30 am

Venue: Virtual Meeting via Zoom

The meeting will be available for the public to view live at the
Democratic Services North Northants YouTube channel:
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCcH JAaHaMtgHDeMQEVXi2g

To Members of the Planning Policy Executive Advisory Panel

Councillors David Brackenbury (Chair), Valerie Anslow, Mark Dearing, Barbara Jenney,
David Jenney, Steven North and Kevin Thurland

Agenda
Iltem | Subject Presenting Page no.
Officer
01 Apologies for non-attendance
02 Members' Declarations of Interest
03 Minutes of the meeting held on 24 January 2022 3-6
Items for discussion
04 Houses in Multiple Occupation Bernice Turner 7-14
05 North Northamptonshire Strategic Plan Scope and Simon James 15-90
Issues
Items for information
06 Executive Forward Plan Democratic 91 -98
Services
07 Close of Meeting
Adele Wylie, Monitoring Officer
North Northamptonshire Council
oS S
Proper Officer
11 February 2022

Page 1


https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCcH_JAaHaMtgHDeMQEVXi2g

This agenda has been published by Democratic Services.

Committee Administrator: Louise Tyers — Senior Democratic Services Officer
@01832 742198

“Blouise.tyers@northnorthants.gov.uk

Public Participation

Executive Advisory Panels are not subject to the full Local Government Act 1972 (as
amended). Public meeting requirements do not apply for these meetings.

Members’ Declarations of Interest

Members are reminded of their duty to ensure they abide by the approved Member Code
of Conduct whilst undertaking their role as a Councillor. Where a matter arises at a
meeting which relates to a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest, you must declare the interest,
not participate in any discussion or vote on the matter and must not remain in the room
unless granted a dispensation.

Where a matter arises at a meeting which relates to other Registerable Interests, you
must declare the interest. You may speak on the matter only if members of the public are
also allowed to speak at the meeting but must not take part in any vote on the matter
unless you have been granted a dispensation.

Where a matter arises at a meeting which relates to your own financial interest (and is not
a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest) or relates to a financial interest of a relative, friend or
close associate, you must disclose the interest and not vote on the matter unless granted
a dispensation. You may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also
allowed to speak at the meeting.

Members are reminded that they should continue to adhere to the Council’s approved
rules and protocols during the conduct of meetings. These are contained in the Council’s
approved Constitution.

If Members have any queries as to whether a Declaration of Interest should be made
please contact the Monitoring Officer at — monitoringofficer@northnorthants.gov.uk

Press & Media Enquiries

Any press or media enquiries should be directed through the Council’s Communications
Team to communications@northnorthants.gov.uk

Public Enquiries

Public enquiries regarding the Authority’s meetings can be made to
democraticservices@northnorthants.gov.uk

Page 2


mailto:monitoringofficer@northnorthants.gov.uk
mailto:communications@northnorthants.gov.uk
mailto:democraticservices@northnorthants.gov.uk

Agenda Iltem 3

gy £ North
.‘a Northamptonshire

— Council

Planning Policy Executive Advisory Panel
At 9:30am on Monday 24 January 2022

Held as Virtual Meeting via Zoom

Present:

Members

Councillor David Brackenbury (Chair)

Councillor Mark Dearing Councillor Barbara Jenney
Councillor David Jenney Councillor Anne Lee
Councillor Steven North Councillor Kevin Thurland
Officers

George Candler — Executive Director of Place and Economy
Rob Harbour — Assistant Director for Growth & Regeneration
Simon Richardson — Interim Planning Policy Lead Manager
Mark Chant — Head of Planning Services (Minerals and Waste)
Richard Marlow — Development Team Leader

Sue Bateman — Senior Planning Officer

Terry Begley — Principal Local Plans Officer

Richard Palmer — Planning Delivery Manager

Louise Tyers — Senior Democratic Services Officer

Also present
Councillor Mike Tebbutt — Assistant Executive Member
44. APOLOGIES FOR NON-ATTENDANCE

An apology for non-attendance was received from Councillor Valerie Anslow
and Councillor Anne Lee was attending as substitute.

45. MEMBERS’ DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

The Chair invited those who wished to do so to declare interests in respect of
items on the agenda.

Councillors Item Nature of Interest | DPI | Other
Interest
Steven North | Item 5 — Kettering | Was Chair of the Yes
General Hospital — | Strategic Planning
Local Development | Committee who
Order would ultimately
make a decision on
the LDO

Page 3



46.

47.

MINUTES

RESOLVED:

The minutes of the meeting held on 9 December 2021 were approved as a
correct record.

MINERALS AND WASTE LOCAL PLAN

The Panel considered a verbal report of the Head of Planning Services
(Minerals and Waste), which provided information on the minerals and waste
planning policies for North Northamptonshire and the key issues to be
considered with updating those policies. The report was marked as agenda
item 4 on the agenda.

During discussion, the following principle points were noted:

Vi.

There were a number of issues to be considered moving forward
including whether the minerals and waste policies should be taken
forward on a Northamptonshire-wide basis or split between North and
West Northamptonshire and whether the policies should be
comprehensively updated or only those policies considered to be out of
date should be updated.

It was explained that the benefits of maintaining a single plan included
there was more opportunity to look at moving allocations around a
larger area. It would also be more cost effective as there was currently
only a small team working in this area.

It was suggested that West Northamptonshire was likely to want their
own plan and some Members would also wish to see our own plan.
This would also support our climate change agenda.

It was clarified that there was a legal requirement for every minerals
and waste authority, which North Northamptonshire was one, to have a
plan in place, however this could be its own plan or part of a wider joint
plan. This could be an opportunity to look at things on a wider, joint
scale possibly on a regional level or in the Ox-Cam Arc area.

It was acknowledged that there were a number of options on how to
proceed with a plan. An options appraisal would be needed on any
possible options and it was suggested that initial discussions should
take place between members and officers, both internally and
externally, to explore this and then bring forward an options paper.

With regards to waste, it was highlighted that a Waste Needs
Assessment would be needed to understand where the capacity gaps
were. Provision would then be facilitated either through allocations or
development management policies. The last few plans had identified a
need for advanced treatment facilities; however, on the ground
development of these type of facilities was being held back over issues
of getting finance for their development.

Page 4



48.

RESOLVED to note the verbal report.
KETTERING GENERAL HOSPITAL — LOCAL DEVELOPMENT ORDER

The Panel considered a report of the Interim Planning Policy Lead Manager,
which sought feedback on a Draft Local Development Order (LDO) for
Kettering General Hospital before it was provided for wider consultation with
local stakeholders and members of the public. The report was marked as
agenda item 5 on the agenda.

Kettering General Hospital was announced by central government as one of
the hospitals considered for significant investment in 2019. It has since been
preparing a Masterplan and Hospital Infrastructure Plan (HIP2) for
consideration for significant funding to deliver Phases 1 and 2 of the
development.

LDOs provided permitted development rights for specified types of
development in specified locations and could be used to help accelerate
development and to simplify the planning process. The LDO would be a
mechanism through which less contentious development in defined areas
could be managed more effectively, without the need for the submission of
planning applications. Development outside of the specified locations or not
fulfilling the conditions specified, would still require the submission of planning
applications in the normal way.

During discussion, the following principle points were noted:

I Members supported the proposed LDO but the residential areas around
the site needed to be taken into consideration. The sensitivities of the
site were acknowledged particularly protecting the balance between the
build and moving to a 10m buffer and also protecting the green space
on the site.

il. The importance of providing certainty to the Hospital Trust in terms of
its ability to deliver development at the site and reducing the risk of
delay was highlighted.

iii. The hospital was an established site with a recognised use, but officers
would put a greater emphasis of the significance of the site within the
LDO. The green space was not of particular environmental quality and
there was a balance between retaining green space and development
for growth.

V. It was explained that between April 2020 and December 2021, the
hospital had been given some permitted development rights by the
government to enable them to manage the Covid-19 pandemic. The
LDO was looking to build on that flexibility and officers believed that the
right balance was there.

V. It was important that the LDO was definitive about when it would finish
and perhaps the wording around the finish date could be made clearer.

Page 5



49.

50.

Vi. It was noted that the LDO made no reference to highways matters,
especially as the site was currently difficult to get in and out of.
Highways was a significant part of the development but was not at the
forefront of the LDO.

Vii. It was acknowledged that consultation would be key and it would be
important that residents and stakeholders were able to access all
relevant information.

RESOLVED:

That subject to the comments made, the content of the Draft Local

Development Order (LDO) be noted in advance of the proposed consultation

with stakeholders and members of the public for a four-week period.

EXECUTIVE FORWARD PLAN

The Executive Forward Plan for January to April 2022 was noted.

CLOSE OF MEETING

The Chair thanked members and officers for their attendance and closed the
meeting.

The meeting closed at 11.40am.

Chair

Date

Page 6



Agenda Item 4

Y /. _ North
.A Northamptonshire

Council

PLANNING POLICY EXECUTIVE ADVISORY PANEL
Monday 21 February 2022

Report Title Houses in Multiple Occupation

Report Author Bernice Turner — Senior Planning Officer (Local Plans)

Bernice.Turner@northnorthants.gov.uk

Relevant Councillor David Brackenbury — Executive Member for
Executive Member | Growth and Regeneration

List of Appendices

None.

1. Purpose of Report

1.1

The report presents the evidence gathered to date in relation to officers’
investigation into the possible use of Article 4 Directions for Houses in Multiple
Occupation (HMOs) in North Northamptonshire and highlights the next steps in
the process.

2. Executive Summary

2.1.

2.2.

2.3.

Significant progress has been made gathering evidence relating to the location
of HMOs in North Northamptonshire along with the formation of a cross-
department working group to guide the investigation into the use of Article 4
Directions and other measures to control effects of HMOs.

Evidence gathered to date has been used to map the location of HMOs in North
Northamptonshire and shows the concentration of HMOs at ward level,
however, there is incomplete complaints data relating to issues associated with
HMOs.

The next stage of the investigation is to develop local area profiles for wards
with high concentrations or clusters of HMOs. This report seeks Member
consideration and discussion of known issues relating to HMOs to supplement

Page 7



mailto:Bernice.Turner@northnorthants.gov.uk

the evidence gathered to date and inform the local area profiles that will be
developed through the working group.

2.4. This report also seeks agreement to consider a wider range of measures than

only Article 4 Directions as part of the investigation.

3. Recommendations

3.1.

3.2.

It is recommended that the Planning Policy Executive Advisory Panel:

(a) Note the progress made with the investigation and the evidence gathered
to date

(b) Consider and discuss any known issues relating to HMOs and available
evidence that could help inform ward level local area profiles

(c) Endorse the approach for the investigation considering a wider range of
measures than only Article 4 Directions

Reason for Recommendations:

This update report is intended to keep Members informed of progress made
with the investigation, but also to seek clarification from Members of any
issues and evidence they are aware of to ensure a robust and credible
investigation is undertaken.

4. Report Background

4.1.

4.2.

4.3.

Houses in Multiple Occupation, or HMOs as they are commonly referred to,
are recognised as meeting important and specific housing needs. However,
concern has been expressed by local councillors and residents in some areas
of North Northamptonshire about the distribution and impact of HMOs. Some
of these comments have suggested that it may be appropriate to restrict the
scope of permitted development rights with the application of Article 4
directions to enable the creation of new HMOs to be monitored and managed
in these areas.

In response to these concerns and suggestions, Members received a verbal
report at the Planning Policy Executive Advisory Panel (PPEAP) meeting on
19 July 2021. Following debate, Members passed a resolution for officers to
investigate the possible use of Article 4 Directions for HMOs in North
Northamptonshire with regular reports back to the Panel.

A working group has been established to lead the investigation, comprising
officers from various service areas that interact with HMOs in their separate
functions, including representatives from Environmental Health, Private Sector
Housing, Planning Enforcement, Council Tax, Development Management,
Public Health and Planning Policy.

Page 8



4.4.

4.5.

4.6.

The remit of the working group is:

e To consider and review the impact of HMOs within North
Northamptonshire

e To review the potential for Article 4 Directions and other solutions to
address the impact of HMOs

e To report back to PPEAP on the outcomes and outputs of the
investigation

The working group is now in place and has been incredibly useful in the
identification of relevant contacts and sources of information, as well as
developing a common understanding on the various processes and systems
used to record data for each area.

Further detailed work has been undertaken by planning policy officers to gather
and analyse the information identified by the working group. The key elements
of the work undertaken include the following:

e Information collected on licensed and non-licensed HMOs from the
Central Licensing Administration Unit, Environmental Health/Private
Sector Housing officers and Council Tax records

e Information collected on common causes of complaints, including noise,
housing condition, amenity, overgrown gardens, waste, anti-social
behaviour, and parking

e Data cleansing exercise undertaken to ensure consistency and remove
duplications between records

e Mapping of information using GIS to facilitate spatial analysis

5. Issues and Choices

5.1.

5.2.

Data sharing and the consolidation of updated information has significantly
improved the understanding of HMOs in North Northamptonshire.

Based on current estimates there are 1,114 known HMOs in North
Northamptonshire. The information gathered is displayed in the map below to
illustrate the distribution of HMOs with confirmation of higher concentrations in
the urban areas.

Page 9



in-Rutland

| \
Wittering ‘

Thoi

N | o
i ;;Spstm
=

nihalnw

/A ardley \
p) “UPPINGHA =

e 4

i ﬁockmgnam
i &

T
Sutton Basgatt

i
| B N
[ S
< Weston by enanu/\_,.l

i A .
| T Coltlngh:V( astle
Mumlnlun \}

Gr 2 Sfast j
Bowefe” |- carlto ) t Wagd
|| Dingley 3 WK ]
ot W2 R AN
oW { | 1 e

51‘v r]

[ J e
\ \7 ( Pipewel /
Bhybrocke ‘/ —I,\ otDESBOR&UGH | Rmﬁ
7 4% 'rn.tmu far~

= ln-lqn.l—

‘1: \Village _ Irthl
i %Addmulnu l\
/ ) \

Isham
,% AX

e I!u N\ ?
Hauuwden < = ‘i
Greal" e

\ Ve mmuuﬁeun H

ASTD) i )
7.5/ Addington/f

\Ward

tdon ’ //. ,.“(

\ Ha[ﬁmck Marrowden

3 A Jif60 =l / snamhrook ‘éb
nnn o : / B (r 9
Hmahh" Brafiéid- ) / W
ﬁdmgsmue ‘ ) 0::;':'& p /o N {7‘—’3 h Y
&nuﬂoﬂ = QL Hastirks ‘f Harrold ‘/‘ am /\
"3 P I R "3‘\ {‘ o \ C/elmgtm L
Q
»\\ Hackleton | YARDLEY X 2
- "m ey | CHASE 109 2 /- canum PN
Scale: 1:200,000 5 iy { Paventa
v gy N Grangere. ’ K farrington a estEnd

North Northamptonshire Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMOSs)

© Crown Copyright and database rights 2021 Ordnance Survey 100063687

SR\ morwweert~ Y\ ) )
furks. e ARy Ll & g rd =/ Lowick
k7 2\ Wrtingtas . Eo T Y B e Is W foraton 7 @ Drayion §

/\\! e othwell an L dC 1 Wavklon 7’undew d J Houwse /G
Yy AT o : S 7
= A4 2 ~ Orton V @ Islipy_~

Lodnmunm/f/\\ Thoma NO ytla @| rsv /
et~ 8
= Gt} S S5 J( Woadford
Cransley 3§ Z W )
g ServiceS| iy by el ’ (‘ Den!urd
) iohn i
Mawslay Broughton // N = il / N Ringstea
7 Wardr

i \\
I(:arqrave N
)

Walsrvllla

pe A 3
_ u‘ i on
A/I SN

"mdn_l_tiidl

-1 A‘\ \
e

) R

\A ‘/' Bohifu\rs!‘

 §

Legend

E NNC Boundary

Licensed HMOs

(o]

Non-Licensable HMOs
Council Tax HMOs

Page 10



TT obed

5.3. A summary table of the data collected to date, as shown below, allows a ward level comparison between the spatial distribution

of HMOs and the extent of complaints received.

Brickhill and Queensway Ward 6,990 42 0.60% * * * * * * *
Burton and Broughton Ward 6,701 8 0.12% * * * * * * *
Clover Hill Ward 6,237 113 1.81% * * * * * * *
Corby Rural Ward 9,143 9 0.10% 33 17 8 * 52 * *
Corby West Ward 8,109 99 1.22% 65 35 8 * 89 * *
Croyland and Swanspool Ward 8,467 89 1.05% * * * * * * *
Desborough Ward 7,322 6 0.08% * * * * * * *
Earls Barton Ward 8,998 2 0.02% * * * * * * *
Finedon Ward 8,475 130 1.53% * * * * * * *
Hatton Park Ward 7,607 23 0.30% * * * * * * *
Higham Ferrers Ward 7,091 17 0.24% 92 * * 1 28 * *
Irchester Ward 6,732 15 0.22% * * * * * * *
Irthlingborough Ward 7,830 12 0.15% 127 * * 0 38 * *
Ise Ward 6,224 4 0.06% * * * * * * *
Kingswood Ward 8,197 202 2.46% 130 79 16 * 250 * *
Lloyds Ward 8,425 46 0.55% 84 44 9 * 79 * *
Northall Ward 9,697 128 1.32% * * * * * * *
Oakley Ward 6,746 31 0.46% 52 27 2 * 51 * *
Oundle Ward 9,050 2 0.02% 50 * * 1 7 * *
Raunds Ward 6,985 5 0.07% 107 * * 2 30 * *
Rothwell and Mawsley Ward 6,902 5 0.07% * * * * * * *
Rushden Pemberton West Ward 6,520 29 0.44% 138 * * 3 43 * *
Rushden South Ward 8,427 34 0.40% 153 * * 7 52 * *
Thrapston Ward 9,867 2 0.02% 88 * * 1 15 * *
Wicksteed Ward 7,205 39 0.54% * * * * * * *
Windmill Ward 5,903 22 0.37% * * * * * * *

* Data unavailable




5.4.

5.5.

5.6.

5.7.

5.8.

5.9.

5.10.

5.11.

The majority of all known HMOs are located within the Kingswood ward in
Corby (202 HMOs or 18%), Finedon ward in Wellingborough (130 HMOs or
12%), Northall ward in Kettering (128 HMOs or 11%) and Clover Hill ward in
Kettering (113 HMOs or 10%). Interestingly the analysis shows the proportion
of HMOs as a percentage of the total households is relatively low, with the
highest in Kingswood at 2.46%. Comparable evidence for Northampton shows
significantly higher ranges between 8% and 14%?.

Where information is available, the evidence shows higher levels of complaints
in the urban areas. However, establishing a correlation between the level of
complaints and extent of HMOs is difficult due to widespread information gaps
related to complaints data. This is largely due to differing IT systems and
knowledge within the area teams.

Paragraph 53 of the NPPF states that Article 4 directions should be limited to
situations where it is necessary to protect local amenity or the well-being of the
area and must be based on robust evidence and apply to the smallest
geographical area possible.

In accordance with the NPPF, the next stage in the investigation will be to
strengthen the current evidence. It is proposed to focus this on the
development of local area profiles for the urban wards with high concentrations
or clusters of HMOs.

Private Sector Housing, Environmental Health and Housing Strategy input will
be required to supplement the data already gathered to further understand the
impact of HMOs and help to minimise the current information gaps. This will
be undertaken through the officer working group to ensure the full breadth of
the effects of HMOs is investigated and that the data applies to the smallest
geographical area possible.

It is suggested that a detailed stage 2 investigation will be undertaken for the
following wards:

Clover Hill Ward, Kettering

Corby West Ward, Corby

Croyland and Swanspool Ward, Wellingborough
Finedon Ward, Wellingborough

Kingswood Ward, Corby

Northall Ward, Kettering

It should be noted that the officer working group recommend that this
investigation should consider a wider range of measures to manage HMOs
than only Article 4 Directions. The report recommendations seek Member
endorsement for this.

Discussion and feedback from Members is welcomed to inform further stages
of the investigation.

1 A study of Housing in Multiple Occupation (HMO) policy, Research Gate, November 2018

Page 12


https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=&ved=2ahUKEwilprGXnMr1AhXGEcAKHYjhAH0QFnoECAUQAQ&url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.northampton.gov.uk%2Fdownload%2Fdownloads%2Fid%2F12106%2F02-a-study-of-housing-in-multiple-occupation-hmo-policy.pdf&usg=AOvVaw1q3k_hnzW7raYSabq36WJs

5.12. The forthcoming North Northamptonshire Strategic Plan Scope and Issues

document also offers an opportunity to explore and strengthen the planning
policy position relating to HMOs across North Northamptonshire.

6. Next Steps

6.1.

The next stage of the investigation will be to develop detailed local area profiles
for the wards listed at paragraph 5.9, which will be undertaken through the
officer working group.

7. Implications (including financial implications)

7.1.

7.1.1.

7.2.

7.2.1.

7.3.

7.3.1.

7.4.

7.4.1.

7.5.

7.5.1.

Resources and Financial

The investigation is currently being led by the planning policy team through
existing budgets; however, ongoing input will be required from a range of
officers given the cross-departmental nature of the investigation.

Legal and Governance

Legislation relevant to HMOs includes: The Licensing of Houses in Multiple
Occupation (mandatory Conditions of Licences) (England) Regulations 2018;
The Housing Act (2004); The Local Government Finance Act 1992; Town and
Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 (as amended).

Relevant Policies and Plans

The outcomes of the investigation are expected to contribute to meeting the
Council’s corporate objectives as outlined within the Corporate Plan 2021-25,
particularly objectives 1: Active, fulfilled lives; 2: Better, brighter futures; and
3: Safe and thriving places.

Risk

The availability of information will influence the outcomes of the investigation
as any measures proposed to manage HMOs must be based on robust and
credible evidence. Where information is not available or not in an appropriate
format to interpret, this may limit the recommendations of the investigation.
Consultation

There is no requirement to undertake wider public consultation at this stage of

the investigation; however, there may be a requirement to consult on any
proposed measures following the outcomes of the investigation.

Page 13



7.6.

7.6.1.

7.7.

7.7.1.

7.8.

7.8.1.

7.9.

7.9.1.

7.10.

7.10.1.

Consideration by Scrutiny

There is no identified need for wider consideration by scrutiny at this stage in
the investigation although the scrutiny commission may choose to factor this
into their future work programme.

Equality Implications

None at this stage in the investigation; however, an Equality Screening
Assessment and/or full Equality Impact Assessment will be completed in
consultation with the Council’'s Equalities team for any measures proposed as
a result of the investigation.

Climate Impact

The Council, having declared a climate change emergency in June 2021, is
committed to reducing its climate impact both within its own Council buildings
and in working with businesses and the wider community to achieve net zero
energy emissions. Any climate or environmental impacts that may arise from
this investigation will be considered fully through any measures proposed by
the Council.

Community Impact

The community impact of HMOs is a key consideration for this investigation.
Crime and Disorder Impact

The impact of HMOs on crime and disorder is a key consideration for this
investigation. The development of robust evidence will allow the Council to
have a greater understanding, which in turn should be helpful in addressing

concerns about anti-social behaviour and crime. Northamptonshire Police will
be consulted as part of any measures proposed through the investigation.

Background Papers

8.1.

EAP Planning Policy 21 July 2021 Minutes of meeting where verbal briefing
was given by Interim Planning Policy Lead Manager

Page 14


https://northnorthants.moderngov.co.uk/documents/g274/Printed%20minutes%2019th-Jul-2021%2009.30%20EAP%20Planning%20Policy.pdf?T=1
https://northnorthants.moderngov.co.uk/documents/g274/Printed%20minutes%2019th-Jul-2021%2009.30%20EAP%20Planning%20Policy.pdf?T=1

Agenda Iltem 5

Y /. _ North
.A Northamptonshire

| a—| .
—— Council

PLANNING POLICY EXECUTIVE ADVISORY PANEL
Monday 21 February 2022

Report Title North Northamptonshire Strategic Plan Scope and
Issues
Report Author Simon James — Policy Manager (Strategic Policy, Design

and Delivery)
simon.james@northnorthants.gov.uk

Relevant Councillor David Brackenbury — Executive Member for
Executive Member | Growth and Regeneration

List of Appendices

Appendix A — Draft Scope and Issues consultation document
Appendix B — Equalities Impact Assessment screening

1. Purpose of Report

1.1. Forthe Planning Policy Executive Advisory Panel (PPEAP) to provide feedback
on the draft Scope and Issues consultation document and the approach to
consultation.

2. Executive Summary

2.1. The North Northamptonshire Strategic Plan will be a key statutory document for
North Northamptonshire Council (NNC). It will cover the whole Council area.
The Plan will review and where appropriate replace the policies that address
the strategic priorities for the area. The Strategic Plan will be supported by a
combination of area-based or topic-based plans, which could include reviews
and updates of the Part 2 Local Plans. Consultation on the Scope and Issues
represents the formal commencement of the Strategic Plan.

2.2. Members of this Executive Advisory Panel noted the draft scope of the North
Northamptonshire Strategic Plan at its 9th December 2021 meeting. Officers
have drafted a consultation document and considered how the consultation
may be undertaken. Feedback from the Panel is sought to inform the
consultation document and the approach to consultation.

Page 15


mailto:simon.james@northnorthants.gov.uk

3. Recommendation

3.1.

3.2.

3.3.

That Members of the Planning Policy Executive Advisory Panel consider and
provide feedback on the draft Scope and Issues consultation document and
the approach to consultation.

Reason for Recommendation:

To provide Member input into the content of the Scope and Issues document
for consultation, and the approach to consultation.

Alternative Options considered:

Regulation 18 of the Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England)
Regulations 2012 requires local planning authorities to consult on the scope
of a local plan which it proposes to prepare. There is considerable flexibility
available at this stage on the type of document that is consulted on. It is
considered that consulting on Scope and Issues as the formal
commencement of the plan-making process is an effective way of obtaining
views on whether we have identified the right issues facing North
Northamptonshire and what the plan should cover. The responses to the
Scope and Issues consultation document will inform and contribute to the
development of detailed planning policies and proposals at later stages of the
plan making process.

4. Report Background

4.1.

4.2.

The North Northamptonshire Strategic Plan will be a key statutory document
for the Council. It will form the strategic Part 1 Local Plan for North
Northamptonshire, to be supported by a combination of area-based or topic-
based plans, which could include reviews and updates of the Part 2 Local
Plans.

The draft scope of the Strategic Plan was reported to this Executive Advisory
Panel at its 9th December 2021 meeting. Paras 4.1-4.3 of this report (Item 6)
set out the background to the Strategic Plan and are summarised below:

e To meet the requirements of the National Planning Policy Framework
(NPPF), at its 25th July 2019 meeting, the former Joint Planning Committee
(JPC) considered a report on the Joint Core Strategy (JCS) review. The
conclusion of the report was that the JCS did not require an immediate
update, but that this should be kept under review. It was agreed that the
new plan should be referred to as the North Northamptonshire Strategic
Plan and should cover the period 2020- 2041, with the spatial vision
potentially extending to 2050 to align with the Arc.

e At the final meeting of the JPC on 2nd March 2021, a “handover” report
provided Members with an update on strategic issues and made
recommendations to the Council on how strategic planning should be taken
forward. This report discussed the national and sub-regional context,

Page 16



4.3.

including the implications of the Arc Spatial Framework, and the scope and
timetable of the Strategic Plan. The report also proposed changing the
statutory plan period to 2021-2041 from that previously agreed. The JPC
endorsed the draft scope of the Strategic Plan and potential timetable and
recommended this to the Council for inclusion in the North
Northamptonshire Local Development Scheme, which will need to be
published to outline the programme of development plan preparation.

At its 9'" December 2021 meeting, Members of this Advisory Panel noted the
scope of the Strategic Plan and provided feedback through discussion. At the
same meeting the Panel recommended that the Draft Local Development
Scheme be advanced to the Executive for consideration, which included a
revised timetable for the Strategic Plan.

5. Issues and Choices

Scope and Issues consultation document

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

5.4.

The Scope and Issues consultation document recognises that the scope of the
Strategic Plan will focus on strategic matters which will, as a minimum, meet
the requirement set out in the National Planning Policy Framework, to have a
plan that addresses the strategic priorities for the area. The plan will help to
deliver the priorities set out in other Council plans and strategies. It will take
forward the priorities for the Council set out in its Corporate Plan and provide
the spatial dimension to it.

The Scope and Issues consultation is the first stage in preparing the new
Strategic Plan. Officers have drafted a consultation document provided at
Appendix A which has sought to identify key issues of relevance to the
Strategic Plan and questions to obtain feedback on these. It is important to
emphasise that no decisions have yet been made on the scale of growth or
where that growth should be located.

The document has been informed by Member feedback, including from the
final Joint Planning Committee meeting in March 2021 and the December
Planning Policy Executive Advisory Panel, existing and emerging evidence,
monitoring and the Corporate Plan. It has also been informed by internal
consultation with other service areas. It has sought to provide greater
emphasis on issues such as the climate emergency, health & wellbeing and
respond to other key policy issues including the Levelling Up White Paper?.
Feedback from the Panel is sought to inform the consultation document in
advance of future consultation.

The Oxford-Cambridge Arc provides the sub-regional context for the Strategic
Plan, which will respond to the challenges and opportunities presented by the
Arc. It will inform and be influenced by the development of the Arc Spatial
Framework. The Government’s response to the Spatial Framework Vision
consultation is anticipated imminently. It will be important to ensure that the
Scope and Issues document reflects the latest government thinking on the Arc.

1 https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/levelling-up-the-united-kingdom

Page 17


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/levelling-up-the-united-kingdom
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/levelling-up-the-united-kingdom

5.5.

It is worth noting that there is a certain amount of uncertainty over progress
with the Arc Spatial Framework, however we wait for further announcements.
Should further clarity become available this will be reflected in the consultation
document.

Further amendments to the Scope and Issues document prior to consultation,
including in response to the issues discussed above, factual updates, including
where updated monitoring information is available, formatting, and
typographical amendments, will be prepared with the agreement of the
Executive Member for Growth and Regeneration, in consultation with the
Executive Director for Place and Economy. Officers are liaising with colleagues
in consultation and engagement regarding the format of the consultation
document and consultation methods to be used.

Sustainability Appraisal Scoping report

5.6.

5.7.

5.8.

5.9.

The Strategic Plan will be informed by a Sustainability Appraisal (SA) which
will consider ways in which the plan can contribute to improvements in
environmental, social and economic conditions. The SA will also identify and
mitigate any potential adverse effects the plan may have. An initial SA Scoping
Report is being prepared and will be available for comment alongside the
Scope and Issues document.

The purpose of a Scoping Report is to provide the context for, and determine
the scope of, the SA of the Strategic Plan and to set out the assessment
framework for undertaking the later stages of the SA.

The SA Scoping Report represents the first stage in the SA/strategic

environmental assessment (SEA) process, it's purpose being to identify:

e The relevant plans, policies, programmes and initiatives contained in
relevant strategic documents that will inform the SA process and the local
plan.

e The relevant baseline information, covering a number of themes taking into
account current social, environmental and economic conditions and issues
in North Northamptonshire.

e Key sustainability issues and problems within these themes.

e A sustainability appraisal framework, consisting of objectives against which
the plan can be considered.

Legislation requires the Council to consult statutory consultees on the SA
Scoping Report, and the SA document will be published at the same time as
the Scope and Issues consultation document.

Approach to consultation

5.10. As the first statutory stage of consultation on the Strategic Plan (often referred

to as Regulation 18 consultation)?, consultation is required to be undertaken in

2 Regulation 18 of the Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012.

Page 18



accordance with statutory requirements, including the Statement of
Community Involvement?® (SCI). The SClI includes the following measures:

e Consultation on documents for eight weeks where possible.

e Electronic communication and online representations will be used as widely
as possible as well as increased usage of social media to inform the public
about each stage of the consultation process.

e As much information as possible will be made available on the North
Northamptonshire Council (NNC) website.

e Notification of those on the consultation database will form the main basis
of communicating consultation information with interested parties in relation
to relevant local plans that are being prepared. The Council will also use its
website and other measures such as local media to promote engagement
and consultation.

e All consultation documents and key supporting material should normally
also be made available in hard copy as well as in electronic format. In such
instances these hard copies will be made available for viewing at the main
and other primary offices of NNC as well as NNC main libraries.

5.11. The SCI recognises that when preparing local plans more extensive
consultation may be undertaken than that required by the regulations. Para 2.5
explains that in the case of North Northamptonshire, the use of greater
consultation and engagement will depend on the nature, coverage and scope
of the respective local plan. Of relevance to the Scope and Issues consultation,
para 2.7 sets out that it will be particularly important to keep the public and
other stakeholders informed about the initial stages of the local plan process
including evidence gathering and survey work. It is proposed that the following
additional measures be used as part of the consultation:

e Member workshop to get feedback from all interested Members.

e Drop-in session/s (format to be confirmed).

e Potential preparation of a summary document aimed at the public and to
support Town & Parish Council involvement in consultation.

5.12. A wider range of consultation and engagement measures would have
advantages in potentially increasing feedback to the consultation and the
range of those inputting into the development of the Strategic Plan including
from traditionally hard-to-reach groups. There would, however, be resource
implications of undertaking these, and it may require additional time before the
consultation was launched (for example if a summary leaflet was to be
produced, etc). Feedback from Members is sought on whether the Council
should use additional consultation and engagement measures than required
by the regulations.

5.13. The Scope and Issues consultation document represents the first stage in the
Strategic Plan process. It is important to clarify that at this stage no views have
been formed on the scale of growth, which sites and locations should be
allocated for new development, how existing policies should be updated or

3 Draft North Northamptonshire Statement of Community Involvement, December 2021

Page 19



whether there should be any additional policies. As the plan is developed
consultation methods will be tailored accordingly with emphasis on the right
consultation with the right people at the right time.

6. Next Steps

6.1.

6.2.

6.3.

Further amendments to the Scope and Issues document prior to consultation,
will be prepared with the agreement of the Executive Member for Growth and
Regeneration, in consultation with the Executive Director for Place and
Economy.

As set out in the emerging Local Development Scheme, consultation on Scope
and Issues is proposed to commence in March for 8 weeks (dates to be
confirmed). The SA Scoping Report will also be consulted on at the same time.
Consultation will be undertaken using the measures discussed in section 5.

The responses to the Scope and Issues consultation document will inform and
contribute to the development of detailed planning policies and proposals at
later stages of the plan making process. The next stage in the preparation of
the Strategic Plan will be to develop a range of potential spatial options to meet
the level of growth being planned for across North Northamptonshire. It is
anticipated in the Local Development Scheme that consultation on Options will
be later this year and all responses made to this consultation will help us to
develop these.

7. Implications (including financial implications)

7.1.

7.1.1.

7.1.2.

7.2.

7.2.1.

Resources and Financial

Sufficient resources will be needed to progress the Strategic Plan. An interim
staffing structure is currently in place to commence work on the plan. A
permanent structure is under review, the outcome of this could affect the
timetable of the plan. The current anticipated budget necessary to commence
work is allocated within the Council’s budget.

The evidence base required to support the drafting of the plan will require a
number of studies, some of which will require external consultancy and
specialist legal advice. The plan itself will also require the Council to enter into
a contract with the Planning Inspectorate to examine the plan. Whilst it is
difficult to anticipate the full costs of producing a plan, a work programme will
continue to be developed to forecast charges, particularly around the time of
the Examination.

Legal and Governance

The Strategic Plan will review and where appropriate replace the policies that
address the strategic priorities for the area. When formally adopted, the
Strategic Plan will form part of the Development Plan for North
Northamptonshire to guide development alongside Part 2 Local Plans and
Neighbourhood Plans.

Page 20


https://northnorthants.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s4827/8.%20LDS%20Appendix%20A.pdf

7.2.2.

7.3.

7.3.1.

7.4.

7.4.1.

7.4.2.

7.5.

7.5.1.

7.6.

7.6.1.

The preparation of the Strategic Plan will need to comply with legal and
regulation requirements set out in the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act
2004 (as amended) and the Town and Country Planning (Local Planning)
(England) Regulations 2012.

Relevant Policies and Plans

The Strategic Plan will take forward the key commitments for the Council set
out in the Corporate Plan and provide the spatial dimension to it. The draft
Scope and Issues consultation document extensively cross-references the
relevant sections of the Corporate Plan to demonstrate how this will be taken
forward.

Risk

There are no significant risks arising from the proposed recommendations in
this report. The main risks in preparing the Strategic Plan are:

e Maintaining progress to ensure that key stages are met to enable the plan

to proceed as efficiently as possible to Examination and adoption.

e Ensuring the availability of resources to allow the preparation process to

proceed in line with the Local Development Scheme.

e Significant changes to national policy and sub-regional guidance.
e Ensure that the Strategic Plan satisfies the tests of soundness, namely that

that the plan has been positively prepared is justified, effective and is
consistent with national policy

To help monitor ongoing progress, and to help inform decision making a
comprehensive risk register and project plan will be prepared and maintained
as part of this project

Consultation

Consultation will be undertaken on the Scope and Issues and other key stages
of the Strategic Plan in accordance with statutory requirements, including the
Statement of Community Involvement.

Consideration by Scrutiny

The draft Scope and Issues document will be used to gain feedback from
Members of this Executive Advisory Panel. It is proposed that a member
workshop be held as part of the consultation. There is no identified need for
wider consideration by scrutiny although should members of the scrutiny
commission request it to go into the work programme, they can do so.

Page 21



7.7.

7.7.1.

7.8.

7.8.1.

7.9.

7.9.1.

7.10.

7.10.1.

Equality Implications

An Equalities Impact Assessment screening has been completed in
consultation with the Council’s Equalities team and is provided at Appendix B.

Climate Impact

The Council, having declared a climate change emergency in June 2021, is
committed to reducing its climate impact both within its own Council buildings
and in working with businesses and the wider community to achieve net zero
energy emissions. The approach to climate change will be fundamental to the
development of the Strategic Plan and is set out within the draft Scope and
Issues consultation document.

Community Impact

The consultation document seeks to ensure that existing and new
communities in North Northamptonshire see real benefits from development.
Consultation on the Strategic Plan as it progresses, and the evidence base to
inform it, will inform the approach and how benefits can be maximised.

Crime and Disorder Impact

The Strategic Plan will set out policies to ensure safe communities and
development. The draft Scope and Issues consultation document provides
further guidance on this, including within the key Principles for Place-making
and Sustainable Communities. Consultation feedback will inform the approach
to these elements as the plan is developed.

Background Papers

8.1.
8.2.
8.3.

8.4.

Emerging North Northamptonshire Local Development Scheme

Minutes of EAP Planning Policy 9" December 2021

EAP Planning Policy 91" December 2021 Report on Scope of the North
Northamptonshire Strategic Plan (Item 6)

North Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy 2011-2031, adopted July 2016

Page 22


https://northnorthants.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s4827/8.%20LDS%20Appendix%20A.pdf
https://northnorthants.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s4927/6.%20PPEAP%20-%20091221%20-%20Draft%20Minutes.pdf
https://northnorthants.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s4169/Scope%20of%20the%20North%20Northamptonshire%20Strategic%20Plan.pdf
https://northnorthants.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s4169/Scope%20of%20the%20North%20Northamptonshire%20Strategic%20Plan.pdf
http://www.nnjpdu.org.uk/publications/adopted-north-northamptonshire-joint-core-strategy-2011-2031/

Appendix

Appendix A

North Northamptonshire Strategic Plan Scope and Issues
March 2022

Foreword from Executive Member for Growth & Regeneration

Introduction

The North Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy (JCS) was adopted in July 2016. It
is the strategic part 1 Local Plan for North Northamptonshire, providing the big
picture for development across North Northamptonshire in the period 2011-2031 and
ensuring that an up-to-date decision-making and investment framework is in place. It
contains policies to deliver sustainable development including 35,000 new homes
and 31,100 new jobs to 2031. Additional local detail is provided by Part 2 Local
Plans and Neighbourhood Plans where these have been or are being produced.

What is the North Northamptonshire Strategic Plan

The Strategic Plan will cover the whole of North Northamptonshire. The plan will
review and, where appropriate, replace the policies that address the strategic
priorities for the area. The plan will not cover minerals and waste planning as this will
be a matter for the Minerals and Waste Local Plan. The Strategic Plan will be
supported by a combination of area-based or topic-based plans, which could include
reviews and updates of the Part 2 Local Plans. This consultation on Scope and
Issues is the first formal stage of preparing the Strategic Plan. The latest timetable is
set out below:

e Scope and Issues Consultation - March 2022

e Options Consultation - November 2022

e Draft Plan Consultation - June 2023

e Publication Plan Consultation - November 2023
e Submission to the Secretary of State - April 2024
e Examination - September 2024

e Inspector's Report - April 2025

e Adoption - September 2025

What is this document about

The Scope and Issues consultation is the first stage of the Strategic Plan. At this
stage we are looking for your views on whether we have identified the right issues
facing North Northamptonshire and what the plan should cover.

There is a statutory requirement to undertake a review of the Local Plan within five
years of adoption to ensure that planning policies are kept up to date and respond to
changing local needs and circumstances.

Page 23


http://www.nnjpu.org.uk/docs/Joint%20Core%20Strategy%202011-2031%20High%20Res%20version%20for%20website.pdf
http://www.nnjpu.org.uk/docs/Joint%20Core%20Strategy%202011-2031%20High%20Res%20version%20for%20website.pdf

Relationship with the North Northamptonshire Corporate Plan

The Strategic Plan will take forward the key commitments for the Council set out in the
Corporate Plan?, that was adopted on 15t December 2021 and provide the spatial

dimension to it.
The Corporate Plan sets out the Vision for North Northamptonshire:

“A place where everyone has the best opportunities and quality of life”

In addition to its Vision, the Corporate Plan sets out the six key commitments

(priorities) the Council is making to North Northamptonshire residents.

6. Modern public

1. Active, fulfilled

services: lives
Providing efficient, Helping people live
effective and affordable healthier, more active,
services that make a real independent and fulfilled

difference to all our local
communities

5. Connected
communities

Ensuring our communities are
connected with one another
so they are able to shape their
lives and the areas where

they live

2. Better, brighter
futures

Caring for our young
people, providing
them with a high

quality education and
opportunities to help
them flourish

Northamptonshire:
& Aplace where

(2 everyone has the
best opportunities
v and quality of life

A
zZ
=
3

]Q

4. Green, sustainable 3. Safe and
environment thriving places

Taking a lead on improving the Enable a thriving and
green environment, making successful economy that
the area more sustainable for | shapes great places to live,
generations to come learn, work and visit

EFFICIENT

L https://www.northnorthants.gov.uk/corporate-plan

Page 24



https://www.northnorthants.gov.uk/corporate-plan
https://www.northnorthants.gov.uk/corporate-plan

The Corporate Plan sets out further detail on what these priorities mean:

Our priorities for North Northamptonshire

. Active, fulfilled lives:

Greater access to better guality adult
social care

Value and support our carers and
volunteers

Improve the accessibility and use of
leisure, culture, art and sport

Provide enhanced support to improve
mental health and wellbeing

Tackle the causes of complex problems
such as poverty and homelessness

. Better, brighter futures:

Ensure every child has equal access to a
high standard of education

Support partners and the Children’s Trust
to provide higher standards of support
Promote better training, further education
and employment opportunities for young

people

. Safe and thriving places:

Strengthen the cultural identity of towns,
villages and rural communities

Help town centres and villages respond to
changing trends

Attract tourism, visitors and inward
investment

‘Working with local businesses and
partners to support the creation of high-
quality, better-skilled jobs

Improve the standard of new and existing
homes and ensure housing supply meets
demand

Tackle the causes of difficult issues leading
to nuisance, crime and antl-social
behaviour

Maintain our highways infrastructure to
keep people moving safely around North
MNarthamptonshire

Enable people to travel across North
MNorthamptonshire and beyond

4.

Green, sustainable environment:

Demonstrate clear leadership on tackling
environmental sustainability

Work with communities and businesses to
tackle climate change and improve air
quality

Promote sustainable, active travel

Embed low carbon technology, sustained
and improved green infrastructure, and
sustainable forms of transport fit for the
future

Educate, encourage re-use, harmonise our
approaches and enforce to keep our
environment free from litter

Protect the countryside and open spaces,
and enhance the natural environment and
ecology

. Connected communities:

Inform and listen to our communities,
giving them a greater say in their future
Respect and engage our local diverse
communities and town and parish councils
Empower a thriving voluntary and
community sector

. Modern public services:

Provide good quality and efficient services
valued by our customers

Enhance the services provided at our
Community Hubs

Invest in and value our staff to become an
employer of choice

Use our assets, skills, knowledge and
technology most effectively

Ensure very robust financial and
performance management

North Northamptonshire Corporate Plan priorities

Whilst all the priorities are relevant to the Strategic Plan it is considered that priorities
3: Safe and thriving places and 4: Green, sustainable environment are of particular
relevance to it.

Page 25



Scope of the Strategic Plan

The Strategic Plan will focus on strategic matters which will, as a minimum, meet the
requirement, set out in the NPPF2, for the Council to have a plan that addresses the
strategic priorities for its area. The plan will also help to deliver the priorities set out
in other Council plans and strategies, notably the Corporate Plan (discussed above).
The plan will also need to respond to the challenges and opportunities presented by
the Oxford-Cambridge Arc (discussed on page Xx).

To address the strategic priorities for the area it is expected that the scope of the
plan will include the issues set out below. This may be refined subject to any
changes to national and sub-regional guidance and in response to consultation
feedback.

e The spatial vision for North Northamptonshire — extended to 2050 to reflect
the Oxford-Cambridge Arc Spatial Framework (ASF) and meet the requirements
of the NPPF.

e The approach to climate change — setting the framework for the local response
to the climate emergency, building on existing initiatives and setting priorities to
deliver net zero carbon.

e The approach to Levelling Up — setting the framework for the local response to
addressing inequalities and setting priorities to level up.

e The spatial strategy for the distribution of development — including the roles
of settlements and the distribution of housing, employment, retail, leisure, and
other commercial development. Cooperation will be needed with adjoining
authorities and other relevant agencies to ensure cross boundary issues,
including options for the longer-term growth of Northampton, Bedford and
Peterborough are considered.

e The housing requirement — the number of new homes to be provided across
North Northamptonshire and the distribution of these. Within this context, the
size, type, and tenure of housing needed for different groups will be identified,
including addressing the proportion of the overall housing requirement that
should be provided as affordable and planning for the needs of an ageing
population.

e Economic growth —an economic vision to strengthen and diversify the economy
of North Northamptonshire, taking account of existing sectoral strengths,
opportunities provided by the Oxford-Cambridge Arc and implications of Covid-
19, including changes to working patterns. An overall jobs target for North
Northamptonshire, distribution of this and identification of new employment land
capable of meeting a wide variety of needs.

e Town Centres - updated policy guidance and strategy for town centres and retalil
development taking account of the impact of policy changes and social/economic
implications including Covid-19. This will focus on reimagining and redesigning
town centres to support regeneration and economic recovery from Covid-19

2 National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) Paras 20- 23, Strategic policies

Page 26



including opportunities for town centres to become community service hubs with
increased leisure and residential space.

Infrastructure — key infrastructure projects that are required to deliver the
strategy such as strategic transport schemes including active travel, utility
networks, community facilities, health, emergency services infrastructure and
site-specific requirements.

Strategic Development Locations and Opportunities — strategic sites that are
key to the delivery of the spatial strategy will be identified in the plan. The
strategic site threshold® will be refined as the plan is progressed, including
consultation on its scope. The location of these sites will be a key consideration
in the context of climate-change related risks and ensuring future development
contributes towards a reduction in carbon emissions. The plan will define clear
development principles for these areas. These will provide the basis for design
codes/frameworks.

Place-making/sustainable development — key principles to ensure high quality
development that is sustainable and supports local communities. The design and
future sustainability of development will be a key consideration in the approach to
climate change and the Strategic Plan will set out a stronger approach to
integrating land-use and transport considerations. This will include a review and
refresh of the Protecting Assets policies in the JCS to ensure they are locally
distinctive with increased emphasis on health and wellbeing. It may be necessary
to harmonise the approach to open space/sports provision across North
Northamptonshire and the broad criteria for the delivery of these.

Natural and Historic Environment — key principles and measures to achieve
environmental net gain including the protection, restoration, and enhancement of
natural, and historic assets. This will include natural capital benefits such as flood
protection, recreation and improved water and air quality as well as ensuring
appropriate measures for internationally, nationally and locally designated sites
and priority habitats or protected species. The Strategic Plan will seek to
maximise the health and wellbeing benefits of nature and accessibility to it.
Opportunities to enhance the green and blue infrastructure network within North
Northamptonshire and maximise its wider benefits and opportunities will be set
out. The spatial strategy and place-making approach will be influenced by the
importance of the natural and historic environment including the role they play in
creating local distinctiveness.

These issues are discussed in more detail within the document along with questions
to obtain feedback.

3 The current threshold in the JCS is 500+ dwellings or 5+ ha of employment land. This will be reviewed taking
account of the thresholds for development proposals to be considered by the Council’s Strategic Development
Management Committee.

Page 27



Spatial context

North Northamptonshire is the area covered by the four former boroughs and
districts of Corby, Kettering, East Northamptonshire and Wellingborough (see Image
1 below). It has a population of ¢.350,0004, which has grown at one of the fastest
rates in the country during the last few years, spread across a distinctive network of
settlements, from large (“growth”) and market towns through to villages (of which
there are over 100). It is bordered by the local authority areas of West
Northamptonshire (comprising the former local authority areas of Northampton,
Daventry, South Northamptonshire), Rutland, Harborough, South Kesteven,
Peterborough, Huntingdonshire, Milton Keynes and Bedford. It is also part of the
Oxford - Cambridge Arc area identified by Government for its significant economic
potential.

Image 1: Location of North Northamptonshire

\yo«x ghan:)

& f? .

Eat Midlands:

Mldla ds

| Birmingham -\

3 e
;f‘\,/w 6=,
_ Birminghbm Covnnlry?
< International ¥~ %

A14.(E248), ”\{te ing ¢
\

>
Wollingb o.:gh’
'\\‘w\\ K XRusnden

Nofthampton'

-

Cambridge

0100055322

@ Crown Copyright and database ight 2014. Ordnance Susvey

North Northamptonshire benefits from a central location and excellent strategic
transport connections. The Al4 provides links to the M1, M6 and Al as well as the
East Coast Ports, while the Midland Main Line provides rail connections from Corby,
Kettering and Wellingborough to London (with onward Eurostar trains) and north to
Leicester, Nottingham and beyond. A range of international airports are all within 70
miles of North Northamptonshire.

4 ONS (2020) Mid-2019 Population Estimates. Available at:
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/populationandmigration/populationestimates/data
sets/populationestimatesforukenglandandwalesscotlandandnorthernireland

Page 28


https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/populationandmigration/populationestimates/datasets/populationestimatesforukenglandandwalesscotlandandnorthernireland
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/populationandmigration/populationestimates/datasets/populationestimatesforukenglandandwalesscotlandandnorthernireland
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/populationandmigration/populationestimates/datasets/populationestimatesforukenglandandwalesscotlandandnorthernireland
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/populationandmigration/populationestimates/datasets/populationestimatesforukenglandandwalesscotlandandnorthernireland

Each settlement has its own role to play and contribution to make to the overall
sense of place and character of North Northamptonshire. Many of the towns have
undergone significant change and economic evolution in recent decades, following
their expansion as centres for the boot and shoe industry or, in the case of Corby, for
the steel industry, and subsequent decline of these industries.

The relationship between the network of settlements and the surrounding
countryside is a distinctive feature of North Northamptonshire and one of the main
attractions for residents and businesses seeking a high-quality environment. A
marked contrast exists between the quiet rural character of much of the area,
particularly the rural northeast of the area and the main settlements in the urban
spine where the emphasis is on investment in growth and renewal. The countryside
incorporates many of North Northamptonshire’s environmental, cultural and heritage
assets such as the Nene Valley and Rockingham Forest.

The economy tends to function as two distinct sub-areas, with the northern area
focused on Corby and Kettering and the southern area on Wellingborough and
Rushden, which has closer functional links with Northampton and Bedford. Whilst
manufacturing still represents a key component of the area’s economy, it has
become significantly more advanced taking advantage of the latest innovative
technology, with service-based sectors also playing an important role. The area has
seen significant growth in, and demand for logistics floorspace.

North Northamptonshire is not uniform, socially or economically, with pockets of rural
deprivation and three wards (Windmill Ward in Kettering (previously known as
Avondale Grange), Kingswood & Hazel Leys in Corby, and Queensway in
Wellingborough) are identified as ‘left behind neighbourhoods’ with significant levels
of social and economic deprivation, typically characterised by lacking places to meet,
barriers to active and engaged community and performing less well on measures of
social connectivity®. Additionally, house prices are so high in some rural parts of
North Northamptonshire that it is extremely difficult for lower incomes and new
emerging households to be able to buy or rent affordable housing.

North Northamptonshire has a range of health inequalities, with a disproportionate
number of negative health outcomes compared to the England average®. For
example, North Northamptonshire is significantly worse than the average in England
for adults who are overweight or obese, alcohol related hospital admissions, hospital
admissions due to falls in 65+ years and adult smoking.

> ‘Left behind? Understanding communities on the edge’, Local Trust and Oxford Consultants for
Social Inclusion, August 2019: https://localtrust.org.uk/policy/left-behind-neighbourhoods/
® Northamptonshire Joint Strategic Needs Assessment - Health and Wellbeing in Northamptonshire, April 2021

Page 29


https://localtrust.org.uk/policy/left-behind-neighbourhoods/
https://localtrust.org.uk/policy/left-behind-neighbourhoods/
https://www.northamptonshire.gov.uk/councilservices/health/health-and-wellbeing-board/northamptonshire-jsna/Documents/Health%20and%20Wellbeing%20in%20North%20Northamptonshire.pdf
https://www.northamptonshire.gov.uk/councilservices/health/health-and-wellbeing-board/northamptonshire-jsna/Documents/Health%20and%20Wellbeing%20in%20North%20Northamptonshire.pdf

Current Spatial Strategy

The JCS sets out a spatial strategy for the
area which outlines the role places play
and how development is distributed
between these places. This is an urban-
focused strategy which identifies Corby,
Kettering, Wellingborough and Rushden as
Growth Towns providing the focus for co-
ordinated regeneration and growth in jobs,
housing, leisure, retail and services.

Burton Latimer, Desborough, Higham
Ferrers, Irthlingborough, Oundle, Raunds,
Rothwell and Thrapston are defined as
Market Towns with a scale of development
related to existing commitments,
infrastructure capacity, regeneration needs
and local character, allowing them to
provide a strong service role for the local
community and wider rural hinterland.
Development in the rural areas is limited to
that required to support a prosperous rural
economy or to meet a locally arising need,
which cannot be met more sustainably at a
nearby larger settlement. A key objective of
the JCS is to maintain distinctive and
separate settlements by preventing
coalescence.

The current spatial distribution of the
housing requirement is set out in Table 1
which reproduces information from Table 5
of the JCS. One of the key issues for the
Strategic Plan to consider is whether this
spatial strategy remains appropriate or
whether alternative options for the
distribution of development need to be
considered. This is discussed further in this
document.

Table 1: Current spatial distribution of JCS
housing requirement

Housing
requirement 2011-

Settlement/Area | 31 Proportion
Corby 8,290 23.7%
Little Stanion 790 2.3%
Corby Rural 120 0.3%
Corby Total 9,200 26.3%
Kettering 6,190 17.7%
Burton Latimer 1,180 3.4%
Desborough 1,360 3.9%
Rothwell 1,190 3.4%
Kettering Rural 480 1.4%
Kettering Total 10,400 29.7%
Wellingborough 5,750 16.4%
Earls Barton 250 0.7%
Finedon 150 0.4%
Irchester 150 0.4%
Wollaston 160 0.5%
Wellingborough

Rural 540 1.5%
Wellingborough

Total 7,000 20%
Rushden 3,285 9.4%
Higham Ferrers 560 1.6%
Irthlingborough 1,350 3.9%
Raunds 1,060 3%
Thrapston 680 1.9%
Oundle 645 1.8%
East Northants

Rural 820 2.3%
East Northants

Total 8,400 24%
North Northants

Total 35,000 100%

8

Page 30




Vision and Outcomes

Spatial Vision

The JCS incorporates a vision for North Northamptonshire and sets out how the
areas and settlements within it will contribute towards its delivery as follows:

VISION

By 2031, North Nerthamptonshire will be a showpiece for modern green living and well
managed sustainable development: a resilient area where local choices have increased
the ability to adapt to the impacts of climate change and to global economic changes.
The special mixed urban-rural character of North Northamptonshire will have been
maintained through urban-focused growth supporting a strong network of vibrant and
regenerated settlements, which each maintain their separate and distinct character
within an enhanced green framework of living, werking countryside.

MNorth Northamptonshire will be outward looking, taking advantage of its excellent
strategic transport connectivity to be a natienally important growth area and focus
for inward investment. Plan led change will have made North Northamptonshire, its
northern and southern sub-areas and individual settlements more self- reliant, with
more choices available locally. Investment in infrastructure, services and facilities and
growth in high quality jobs will have led to less need to travel and will have shaped
places in a way that meets the needs and aspirations of local people. A strong focus on
growing investment in tourism, leisure and green infrastructure will be balanced with
the protection and enhancement of the area'’s landscape character and its valuable built

and natural environment.

Morth Northamptonshire will be an exemplar for construction based innovation and the
delivery of low carbon growth. Its high quality environment and prosperous economy
will ensure it has a stronger profile within the UK and Europe; widely recognised as a
safe, healthy, affordable and attractive area for residents and visiters, and an excellent
place for business to invest in.

Ecosystems will be protected and enhanced and provision of ecosystem services
increased where demand exists. The Rockingham Forest will be re-invigorated through
major new tree planting, providing carbon storage and a focus for tourism, recreation
and sustainable wood fuel production. Restored and newly created habitats in the Nene
Valley Nature Improvement Area, will have delivered improvements for both wildlife and

people and a step change in nature conservation whilst recognising its tourism potential.

CONTRIBUTING TO THIS OVERALL VISION

B Corby will be well on the way to doubling its population and will offer international
class culture and sport facilities. Enterprise areas will have promoted the town as
a base for businesses leading the way in high performance technologies, creative
industries and the green economy. Smart and innovative regeneration and growth
will have delivered a transformed, vibrant and growing Town Centre and sustainable
urban extensions; together with a network of accessible natural green spaces forming
the urban gateway to the wider Rockingham Forest.

Page 31



B East Northamptonshire will be the heartland of small and medium sized enterprises,
based on regenerated and thriving market towns with an enhanced role for Rushden
as the District’s Growth Town. Implementation of the consented development at
Rushden Lakes will have provided a new out of centre retail and leisure offer serving
residents in the southern area of North Northamptonshire and delivering significant
environmental benefits in the Nene Valley. Diverse, sustainable villages and a living,
working countryside will provide the backdrop for tourism, creative industries
and low carbon businesses to locate at the meeting point of the Nene Valley and

Rockingham Forest.

B Kettering will be the largest retail centre and its vibrant town centre, regarded for
being characterful, distinctive and fun, will provide a focus for its surrounding market
towns and villages. The town will be the focus for healthcare and will lead the way
in renewable energy investment to strengthen the green economy. Its business
community will capitalise on its excellent connectivity, including its position on the
Trans-European (E24 route) Al4 and on the electrified Midland Mainline rail route.

B Wellingborough will be the gateway to North Northamptonshire for businesses
looking for good rail connections to the south east and Europe, with a high profile
office development centred on the railway station. lts historic core will be the
heart of the community, serving the town and its prosperous satellite villages with a

diversified retail, leisure and heritage offer.

As the Strategic Plan is updated it will be necessary to review the vision and
consider how it can be extended to 2050. It is considered that whilst the existing
vision remains relevant, it needs to take into consideration important issues and
opportunities that have emerged since the JCS was adopted, such as significant and
ongoing changes to the planning system, as well as changing patterns to lifestyles
accelerated through the Covid 19 pandemic. The vision will also need to be reviewed
by taking into account the impact that existing major planning permissions may have
on the spatial strategy.

Consultation question:

1. Is this vision still appropriate for guiding future development and growth in
North Northamptonshire. Are there any changes you would like to see to the
vision and why?

10

Page 32



Spatial Outcomes

The JCS vision is supported by 10 Spatial Outcomes, the delivery of which is key to

achieving the vision by 2031:

The Plan sets out a framework for place shaping, focusing on the issues that matter
to local communities and providing a context within which community led planning
initiatives can flourish and prosper. It seeks to create successful, safe, strong, cohesive
and sustainable communities where residents are actively involved in shaping the places
where they live.

The Plan will create more sustainable places that are naturally resilient to future climate
change. Carbon footprints will be minimised and sustainable transport choice will be
improved. Low carbon growth will be delivered through policies that seek the highest
viable standards for energy efficiency, renewable energy and sustainable construction.

The Plan sets out a framework for retaining the area's distinctiveness, by maintaining
and enhancing landscape and townscape character. It promotes an integrated approach
to biodiversity management and a net gain in Green Infrastructure, strengthening links
between the countryside and the towns.

The Plan establishes the priorities for future public and private investment and
collaboration. It will help to secure provision of the infrastructure, services and facilities
needed to sustain and enhance communities and support new development.

The Plan provides for the workplaces, jobs, skills and sites to help build a more diverse,
dynamic and self-reliant economy; one which is not overly dependent on in or out
commuting. Higher skilled jobs will be facilitated through improved further education
provision and enterprise and innovation will be enabled through next generation digital
connectivity. Provision will be made to capitalise upon existing sectoral strengths in
creating a stronger, greener economy.

Page 33

11



The Plan seeks transformed connectivity at all levels. It sets out measures to enhance
Meighbourhood Connectivity, establishes the requirement for inter urban transport
links and for improvements to the strategic road network and main-line rail connections.
It identifies the growth locations that will provide connections to and support the longer-

term opportunity for the Northamptenshire Arc Rapid Transit network.

The Plan identifies the actions needed in order to make walking the first choice of
transport to local services and jobs including increasing connectivity to and from
new development and the countryside and centres and ensuring that developments
allow movement through them. It makes the links to the Local Transport Plan for the
county, which identifies improvements to public transport, cycling networks and travel
information that will encourage a shift away from car use in the towns and increase

transport choice in the rural area.

The Plan proposes sustainable urban-focused development and a proactive approach
to meeting rural needs, supporting greater self-reliance for the area as a whole. The
network of settlements will be strengthened through transformed public transport
services within the north-south urban spine and out to the market towns in the east,
with demand responsive services in the rural areas. Superfast broadband will support
rural businesses, enable more working from home and assist the develoepment of local

food and fuel supply chains.

The Plan proposes the regeneration of town centres and of older parts of towns will help
to maximise the use of brownfield land for new development and inspire community
confidence in the need for positive change. The Plan identifies the town centres at
Kettering and Corby as areas of focus for leisure, retail and cultural facilites for the
northern area, making them into real hearts for their communities. Implementation of the
consented Rushden Lakes development will provide an additional retail and leisure focus
serving the southern area, complementing Rushden and Wellingborough town centre,
which will diversify and strengthen their convenience retail provision and cultural offers.

Page 34

12



The Plan identifies the quality and mix of housing needed to meet the full, objectively
assessed needs of the housing market area, ensuring that a sufficient propertion is
affordable and accessible to all. It supports initiatives that build stable, safe, healthy
and strong communities, which means respecting cultural diversity and distinctiveness;
planning new development to help reduce crime, anti-social behaviour and the fear of
crime; promoting well-being and health; ensuring that development is of local character;
and supporting area based renewal.

It is considered that the spatial outcomes remain relevant, but the Strategic Plan will

need to consider what changes are needed to the spatial outcomes as it is
developed.

Consultation question:

2. Are the above spatial outcomes still the most appropriate ones for guiding
development and growth in North Northamptonshire in light of the issues
discussed in this document. What changes to, or other outcomes would you
like to see?

Page 35

13



Relationship with Oxford-Cambridge Arc

The Oxford-Cambridge Arc has been identified by the Government as a key
economic priority. The Government wants to support sustainable economic growth in
the Arc, so is developing the Arc Spatial Framework (ASF) to plan for that growth to
2050 and beyond. The ASF will form both national planning policy and transport
policy for the Arc and local planning and local transport authorities must have regard
to it when preparing local transport and local development plans and policies. It will
also be capable of being a material consideration in relevant planning decisions in
the area. The Strategic Plan will inform and be influenced by the development of the
ASF.

Huntingdonshire East &

Cambridgeshire %
Cambridgeshire

* Northamptonshire

West
Northamptonshire

Buckinghamshire

Ceremonial Counties

Oxford County Council

. Cambridgeshire and
Peterborough
Combined Authority

South
Oxfordshire

District Council

Unitary Authority

The Oxford-Cambridge Arc

Consultation on the Vision for the ASF was undertaken between July and October
2021. The consultation document’ set out that the ASF will have sustainability at its
core and guide planning decisions and investment under four policy ‘pillars’ The
Environment, The Economy, Connectivity and Infrastructure and Place-making. The
Government is currently analysing the responses to the consultation and is preparing
its response which is expected to be published imminently.

Consultation question:

3. How should the Strategic Plan respond to the Oxford-Cambridge Arc?

7 Creating a Vision for the Oxford-Cambridge Arc Consultation, HM Government, July 2021

14

Page 36


https://placebuilder.io/futureofthearc
https://placebuilder.io/futureofthearc
https://cdn.placebuilder.io/prod/2021/07/19/87/87a82cf2.pdf
https://cdn.placebuilder.io/prod/2021/07/19/87/87a82cf2.pdf

What period should the Plan cover?

Timeframe for the Strategic Plan

The NPPF expects strategic policies to look ahead at least 15 years post adoption
and to ensure that large scale growth is set within a vision of at least 30 years. As
previously discussed, Government is currently preparing the ASF which looks to
2050. It is proposed that the statutory period of the Strategic Plan will be 2021 to
2041, with the spatial vision extending to 2050 to align with the ASF and to meet the
requirements of the NPPF.

This is because those aspects of the plan which must be evidence based, such as
housing and job numbers, are better suited to this shorter time horizon and it should
help to demonstrate that the plan is deliverable. However, a longer-term view on
climate change will also be evidenced as part of a holistic, long-term approach. It is
proposed that where possible, evidence to inform the Strategic Plan will look to
2050.

Consultation question:

4. Do you agree that the plan-period should be 2021 to 2041? If not, what
should it be and why?

15

Page 37



Climate change Corporate Plan Priorities:

The Council declared a climate and environment 3. Safe and thriving places
emergency on 28th July 2021. Responding to the Climate |

. .. ot . . . mprove the standard of new and
Emergency is a priority area for the Council, with a Climate existing homes and ensure housing
Change Task and Finish Group established to identify supply meets demand

e Enable people to travel across North

recommendations and actions the Council could undertake Northamptonshire and beyond

to facilitate climate change adaptation and mitigation _
locally, amongst other objectives. This work has culminated | 4- Greener, sustainable

in the publication of a draft Climate Change Framework environment

which contains several recommendations for the Council to . .

. ) . ) 8 L. . Demonstrate clear leadership on
implement (subject to public consultation)®. Within this draft tackling environmental sustainability
framework, recommendations are made on a thematic e  Work with communities and

basis across those areas the Council has influence over. businesses to tackle climate change

With regards to “Planning, Transport, Energy, Natural and and improve air quality

Built Environment”, the framework makes several
. . . ® Embed low carbon technology,
recommendations of particular relevance to the Strategic sustained and improved green

Plan which are reflected in this document. infrastructure, and sustainable forms
of transport fit for the future

® Promote sustainable, active travel

®  Protect the countryside and open

The Task and Finish Group recommended. that the Council spaces, and enhance the natural
“supports a growing North Northamptonshire that future environment and ecology

developments embed proven low carbon technology,
sustained and improved green infrastructure, and
sustainable forms of transport fit for the future”. These elements are already
contained within the JCS and will be taken forward and refined as the Strategic Plan
is developed.

Responding to climate change will be at the heart of the plan, with ambitious but
deliverable policies, consistent with social, economic, and environmental objectives,
and with legislation and national policy. The plan must be based on robust evidence,
including a credible pathway which outlines how North Northamptonshire will achieve
net zero by 2050 at the latest. Technical work will explore the potential to accelerate
this to reach net zero sooner. Consideration will also need to be given to targets set
out in the ASF which builds on England’s Economic Heartland transport strategy in
aiming for net zero carbon emissions from transport by 2040, but no later than 2050.

Taking account of climatic projections, all elements of the Plan will need to deliver
development, including patterns of development, which reduces greenhouse gas
emissions locally as part of the area’s wider contribution to national objectives. This
will include consideration of the amount and distribution of development, how people
travel within and beyond North Northamptonshire, it's environment and
environmental opportunities and the approach to building design and standards. It
will be important that the Strategic Plan focuses on elements that it can influence,
which will form part of the Council’'s wider approach to climate change.

8 North Northamptonshire Shadow Overview & Scrutiny Committee. Item 7 (Climate Change Framework) and Appendix A (Climate Change
Strategy):
https://cmis.northamptonshire.gov.uk/cmis5live/MeetingsCalendar/tabid/73/ctl/ViewMeetingPublic/mid/410/Meeting/3756/Committee

/460/Default.aspx

16

Page 38


https://cmis.northamptonshire.gov.uk/cmis5live/MeetingsCalendar/tabid/73/ctl/ViewMeetingPublic/mid/410/Meeting/3756/Committee/460/Default.aspx
https://cmis.northamptonshire.gov.uk/cmis5live/MeetingsCalendar/tabid/73/ctl/ViewMeetingPublic/mid/410/Meeting/3756/Committee/460/Default.aspx
https://cmis.northamptonshire.gov.uk/cmis5live/MeetingsCalendar/tabid/73/ctl/ViewMeetingPublic/mid/410/Meeting/3756/Committee/460/Default.aspx
https://cmis.northamptonshire.gov.uk/cmis5live/MeetingsCalendar/tabid/73/ctl/ViewMeetingPublic/mid/410/Meeting/3756/Committee/460/Default.aspx

North Northamptonshire has been subject to serious flooding in recent years,
including in areas that have not been previously known to flood, with climate change
and extreme levels of rainfall playing a role in this. Despite this, North
Northamptonshire is in the driest region of the UK with low rainfall (71% of the UK
average) and high evaporation losses. Water resources are already under pressure
and the region is designated as an area of serious water stress by the Environment
Agency where opportunities for new water resources are limited.

The approach to climate change will consider both adaptation and mitigation
measures across both the built and natural environment as well as ensuring
resilience to climate change. These measures may include:

The sustainability standards of buildings;

Locating new development to minimise the risk of flooding, protecting water
quality and maximising water efficiency;

limiting the need to travel by car, particularly for short journeys;
identification of priority areas for new energy infrastructure;

multifunctional greenspace that can support carbon storage and address
overheating, flooding and soil erosion

The plan will also look to build upon existing JCS policies and initiatives that respond
to climate change, including the Rockingham Forest for Life®. The design and future
sustainability of development will be a key consideration in the approach to climate
change and the Strategic Plan presents an opportunity to fully integrate land-use and
transport planning around efforts to address the Climate Emergency.

Consultation questions:

5. What is a realistic and deliverable pathway for reaching net zero for the
Strategic Plan?

6. What are the key measures that the plan should take to ensure appropriate
climate change adaptation, mitigation and resilience?

° https://www.riverneneregionalpark.org/projects/nene-catchment-partnership-ncp/forest-for-life/

17

Page 39


https://www.riverneneregionalpark.org/projects/nene-catchment-partnership-ncp/forest-for-life/
https://www.riverneneregionalpark.org/projects/nene-catchment-partnership-ncp/forest-for-life/

Levelling Up

The Corporate Plan announces the Council’s intention to
support our communities, recover from the pandemic and
help them level-up.

The Government published the Levelling Up White Paper
in February 2022. It sets out a detailed strategy to ‘level up’
and help ‘left behind’ areas of the country, including
devolved powers and a series of wide-ranging national
missions to be achieved by 2030. The national missions
include: closing the gap in healthy lifestyle expectancy;
improving local transport connectivity; providing access to
5G broadband for most of the population; improving
people’s satisfaction with town centres and local culture;
and raising the level of high-quality skills training.

The opportunity for the Strategic Plan to contribute to the
achievement of the national missions and reduce
inequalities within and between communities and ensure a
social and economic recovery from the pandemic is very
significant. The pandemic has exposed and exacerbated
existing inequalities, indicating a need for additional action
to support communities most in need.

The JCS coordinates and facilitates a nationally significant
scale of growth in North Northamptonshire, with significant
levels of housing accompanied by new and improved
infrastructure of all types. This has helped level up
communities by increasing housing options, transforming
town centres, improving access to open spaces and green
infrastructure, spreading opportunities for employment, and
enhancing access to community and cultural facilities. Yet
there are still significant inequalities within North
Northamptonshire with some 37,400 households
experiencing some form of income deprivation, and 11,530
households in fuel poverty, whilst Kingswood and Hazel
Leys in Corby, Windmill Ward in Kettering, and

Corporate Plan Priorities:

1. Active, fulfilled lives

Improve the accessibility and use of
leisure, culture, art and sport
Tackle the causes of complex
problems such as poverty and
homelessness

3. Safe and thriving places

Strengthen the cultural identity of
towns, villages and rural communities
Help town centres and villages
respond to changing trends

Attract tourism, visitors and inward
investment

Working with local businesses and
partners to support the creation of
high-quality, better-skilled jobs
Improve the standard of new and
existing homes and ensure housing
supply meets demand

Tackle the causes of difficult issues
leading to nuisance, crime and anti-
social behaviour

Maintain our highways infrastructure
to keep people moving safely around
North Northamptonshire

Enable people to travel across North
Northamptonshire and beyond

4. Greener, sustainable
environment

Promote sustainable, active travel

Embed low carbon technology,
sustained and improved green
infrastructure, and sustainable forms
of transport fit for the future

Protect the countryside and open
spaces, and enhance the natural
environment and ecology

. Connected Communities

Inform and listen to our communities,
giving them a greater say in their future

Queensway in Wellingborough are among the most deprived neighbourhoods in the

country identified as ‘left behind™0.

Reinforcing the approach to the levelling up agenda is important to residents and a
priority area for the Council, who have established a Scrutiny Commission to review
and understand data, engage local stakeholders, and make recommendations to
develop a levelling up plan focussed on the three areas identified as ‘left behind

10 “Left behind? Understanding communities on the edge’, Local Trust and Oxford Consultants for
Social Inclusion, August 2019: https://localtrust.org.uk/policy/left-behind-neighbourhoods/

Page 40

18



https://localtrust.org.uk/policy/left-behind-neighbourhoods/
https://localtrust.org.uk/policy/left-behind-neighbourhoods/

neighbourhoods’. It is recognised that that any insights gathered through the scrutiny
review could apply to other wards and areas across North Northamptonshire.

The Strategic Plan will take forward the findings of the Scrutiny Commission and
build on the existing JCS policies and initiatives including support for well-designed,
energy efficient and affordable housing, supporting regeneration of brownfield sites,
and improving access to green spaces, health care and social infrastructure, that
help to level up communities and ensure a social and economic recovery from the
pandemic, in order to support the Council’s priorities and respond to the
Government’s White Paper. It will support and deliver for all areas of North
Northamptonshire. However, working with partners will also target those
communities experiencing the greatest level of deprivation and health inequality.

Consultation questions:

7. How can the Strategic Plan help to level up and ensure no community is left
behind?

8. Are there priority areas for levelling up that the plan should focus on?

19
Page 41



The spatial strategy for the distribution of
development

The Strategic Plan will contain policies that set out the
overall spatial strategy for the distribution of development.

The current urban-focused growth strategy set out in the
JCS gives high priority to the reuse of suitable brownfield
sites within the Growth Towns and Market Towns,
particularly where they can be served by public transport.
It is underpinned by Sustainable Urban Extensions (SUES)
(also known as Garden Communities) which will be
delivered up to and beyond 2031.

As of 15t April 2021, there have been 2,752 completions at
the Garden Communities with outstanding commitments
for 13,149 dwellings. Of these Garden Communities, the
JCS identifies West Corby, Priors Hall and Weldon Park
(North-East Corby), Hanwood Park (Kettering East),
Glenvale Park (Wellingborough North), Stanton Cross
(Wellingborough East) and Rushden East as Principal
SUEs. The JCS sets out at paragraph 5.10 that “Subject to
detailed assessment, the expansion of the principal SUEs
identified in Figure 16 is likely to make best use of
infrastructure investment and support the viability of these
developments”.

LEGEND

Committed Principal

Sustainable Urban

Extensions

I:‘ Proposed Principal
r~, Sustainable Urban
i ./ Extensions

A

N

© Crown Copyright and database right 2014,
Ordinance Survey 100019331

Figure xx: Principal Sustainable Urban Extensions

Corporate Plan Priorities:

1. Active, fulfilled lives

Improve the accessibility and use of
leisure, culture, art and sport
Tackle the causes of complex
problems such as poverty and
homelessness

3. Safe and thriving places

Strengthen the cultural identity of
towns, villages and rural communities
Help town centres and villages
respond to changing trends

Attract tourism, visitors and inward
investment

Working with local businesses and
partners to support the creation of
high-quality, better-skilled jobs
Improve the standard of new and
existing homes and ensure housing
supply meets demand

Tackle the causes of difficult issues
leading to nuisance, crime and anti-
social behaviour

Maintain our highways infrastructure
to keep people moving safely around
North Northamptonshire

Enable people to travel across North
Northamptonshire and beyond

4. Greener, sustainable
environment

Promote sustainable, active travel

Embed low carbon technology,
sustained and improved green
infrastructure, and sustainable forms
of transport fit for the future

Protect the countryside and open
spaces, and enhance the natural
environment and ecology

Monitoring shows that between 2011 and 2020 there has been less housing delivery
at the Growth Towns than anticipated and more than anticipated at the Market

Page 42

20




Towns, 4 named villages and in rural areas!. This can be explained by the time
taken for the Garden Communities to come forward and it is likely that the Growth
Towns will continue to see further increases in the coming years as more of the
Garden Communities begin to build at a more rapid pace. Chart 1 from the 19/20
Authorities’ Monitoring Report is reproduced below:

Chart 1: Comparison of the JCS distribution of housing
development to actual rates recorded
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%

0%
Growth Towns Market Towns Villages Rural Areas

JCS 2011-31 Actual 2011-20

Alongside the focus on Garden Communities as locations for large-scale growth,
Policy 14 of the JCS identifies the opportunity to create an exemplary Garden Village
at Deenethorpe airfield and sets out demanding standards for its design and
operation. This is being taken forward as Tresham Garden Village, which is one of
14 garden village projects that the Government is supporting through capacity
funding and assistance from Homes England. This support has enabled the
preparation of a detailed masterplan and delivery strategy which will form the basis
of a planning application.

The current approach for rural areas is for limited development required to support a
prosperous rural economy or to meet a locally arising need, e.g. affordable housing,
which cannot be met more sustainably at a nearby larger settlement.

Policies that set out the overall spatial strategy for the distribution of development in
the Strategic Plan will need to facilitate sustainable development to meet local needs
and support measures to both mitigate and adapt to climate change and address
inequalities. They will be key to delivering levelling up in North Northamptonshire.
Transport is the largest source of emissions that the Council can influence, so the
plan will need to focus on a sustainable pattern of development that reduces the
need to travel, encourages model shift and facilitate other measures such as
enabling a switch to electric vehicles, cycling and walking, including the provision of
supporting infrastructure. The extent of existing commitments (sites with planning

11 The JCS sets out housing requirements for Growth Towns, Market Towns, the four largest villages of Earls
Barton, Finedon, Irchester and Wollaston in Wellingborough referred to as villages and baseline level of
growth that should be planned for in the Rural Areas of each former district/borough

21

Page 43



permission and allocated in local plans) will strongly influence the future spatial
strategy alongside infrastructure capacity, the need to reduce carbon emissions and
environmental opportunities and constraints.

Respecting and strengthening the different identities of the towns, villages and rural
communities in North Northamptonshire is a key priority in the Corporate Plan. This
will be underpinned by the spatial strategy of the Strategic Plan. It will continue to
support suitable brownfield development and regeneration opportunities, particularly
within town centres.

A key consideration for the Strategic Plan will be whether to continue with an urban
focused growth strategy or consider other spatial options for development such as:

e Dispersal- Growth in villages with appropriate infrastructure and sufficient access
to services and facilities.

e New settlements- The potential for freestanding new settlements and the future
role of Tresham Garden Village.

e Corridor-based growth- The potential to focus growth alongside infrastructure
improvements alongside key transport corridors either existing or proposed.

e Employment focus- The potential to focus residential development alongside
existing or proposed strategic employment areas.

Consultation questions:

9. Should future needs be met by continuing with the current strategy of
urban-focused growth. If not, why?

10. Are there any other spatial options that should be considered?

22
Page 44



Housing Corporate Plan Priorities:

Ensuring that the right number and type of houses are 1. Active, fulfilled lives
delivered across North Northamptonshire are key issues for
) A i . Tackle the causes of complex

the Strategic Plan to address and can play a leading role in problems such as poverty and
addressing the dual challenge of levelling up and climate homelessness
change. The Strategic Plan will set out the number of new 3. Safe and thriving places
homes to be provided across North Northamptonshire and -

L. . . e  Strengthen the cultural identity of
the distribution of these based on the spatial strategy for the towns, villages and rural communities
distribution of development. *  Improve the standard of new and

existing homes and ensure housing

Within this context, the size, type, and tenure of housing . i;fz’lfl'gt’;‘:egzudsee’:i’;‘;imcu“ sues

needed for different groups will be identified including the leading to nuisance, crime and anti-
proportion of the overall housing requirement that should be social behaviour

affordable.

In the JCS housing figures are provided by former LPA area and distributed in a way
that supports the settlement hierarchy. Housing requirements are provided for
Growth Towns, Market Towns and named villages with rural housing requirements
also set out. The NPPF sets out at paragraph 66 that within the overall housing
requirement, strategic policies should also set out a housing requirement for
designated neighbourhood areas which reflects the overall strategy for the pattern
and scale of development and any relevant allocations.

From 15% July 2021 five-year housing supply is being measured against Local
Housing Need (LHN) for the North Northamptonshire Housing Market area as whole
based on a calculation in accordance with the Government’s standard methodology.
The Strategic Plan will need to consider the future approach for assessing housing
land supply (HLS).

How much housing do we need to plan for?
Local Housing Need

In terms of the overall scale of housing growth that the plan needs to plan for, the
NPPF identifies at paragraph 61 that to determine the minimum number of homes
needed, strategic policies should be informed by a local housing need assessment,
conducted using the standard method in national planning guidance unless
exceptional circumstances justify an alternative approach. The latest LHN for North
Northamptonshire is 1,784 net additional dwellings per annum which would equate to
35,680 dwellings over the period 2021-2041. This is very similar to the 35,000 new
dwellings identified in the JCS for the period 2011-2031.

LHN could change over the plan period or if the standard methodology changes. The
Council has commissioned consultants to update evidence on housing and
economic needs in North Northamptonshire, referred to as a Housing and Economic
Needs Assessment (HENA).

23

Page 45



Uplift for contingencies

The LHN figure provides a minimum starting point in determining the number of
homes needed in an area. It will be important for the Strategic Plan to consider
whether an uplift should be provided to the LHN to provide additional choice and
flexibility and contingency for any delivery issues that may arise or to assist with
delivering key aims for the area.

In considering potential levels of uplift, issues such as impact on infrastructure,
market saturation, etc will need to be assessed. It will also be necessary to consider
the distribution of potential uplift. Feedback is sought on whether North
Northamptonshire should plan for an uplift above LHN, and what the extent of this
should be. To determine the most appropriate level of housing it will be important to
factor in the outcomes of further work regarding specific housing needs (including
mix of housing sizes, types and tenures for different groups, including proportion of
affordable housing) which will be informed by the HENA and the relationship with the
economy of the area, recognising the need for a sustainable balance between
homes and jobs, as set out in the current JCS.

Current housing supply

To identify what provision the plan will need to make it is important to look at existing
housing supply as this will determine the number of sites that will need to be
identified. As described above, this existing supply will also strongly influence the
spatial strategy of the Strategic Plan. Given the plan will run from 2021 to 2041
there is clearly a significant level of supply already identified to come forward through
the JCS, specifically at the Garden Communities and additional site allocations
within the Part 2 Local Plans. The evidence base informing the Strategic Plan will
need to demonstrate that there is sufficient supply of deliverable housing sites to
meet the requirements. This will be informed by monitoring of housing delivery and a
technical assessment in a Housing and Employment Land Availability Assessment
(HELAA). Across North Northamptonshire as at 15t April 2020 existing supply
amounts to 30,457 dwellings. When considering this supply against the LHN
requirement of 35,680 (1,784 x 20) dwellings between 2021-41, this leaves a
shortfall of 5,223 dwellings to be found in this period to meet the requirement.

The NPPF sets out that any housing needs that cannot be met within neighbouring
areas should be taken account in establishing the amount of housing to be planned
for. The Council has and will continue to work across geographical boundaries and
with adjoining authorities through the duty to cooperate to establish if any unmet
need should be provided for in the plan. However, this has not been raised as an
issue to address through ongoing discussions with adjoining authorities and local
plan development to date.

Consultation question:

11. Should the Strategic Plan set out a provision for housing above Local
Housing Need? If so, what should this uplift be?

24

Page 46



How to diversify the Market?

The issue of delivery, particularly on larger sites is a nationwide issue that has been
recognised by Government. A number of the Garden Communities have not
progressed as quickly as expected. Substantial work has gone into progressing the
Garden Communities including seeking to resolve viability and infrastructure issues
with support from Homes England. It is expected that delivery at the Garden
Communities will accelerate and will be a key element of the Strategic Plan.
Reliance on a small number of large developers and housebuilders is identified in
the North Northamptonshire Infrastructure Framework (NNIF) as a factor affecting
delivery. Several of the same volume housebuilders are particularly active across the
area’s key development sites, and whilst they offer scale of operation and speed of
progress, residential build out rates can often be affected by capacity pinch points,
customer sales and competition. This points to a potential need to broaden the range
of house builders operating across North Northamptonshire’s main development
sites, making these opportunities available to a diverse range of providers including
SMEs, custom and self-builders and potentially the Council.

A series of government reviews into housing supply, including the Letwin review?
(October 2018) and Bacon review!? (August 2021), identified possible measures to
seek to increase the supply of new homes to the market, including Modern Methods
of Construction and diversifying the housing offer on strategic sites through different
tenures and house types including ensuring sufficient plots for self-build/custom-build
housing. This will be an important issue for this plan to address.

Consultation question:

12. What measures could the plan include to diversify the housing offer or
otherwise increase the rates of housing delivery?

What type of housing do we need to plan for?

Locally, there are some wide variations in house prices, however generally prices
have increased at a faster rate than the England average. Although cheaper than the
rest of the country, prices are higher than the average for the East Midlands and
remain unaffordable to many local households. An average priced property in North
Northamptonshire is significantly higher than the average income. North
Northamptonshire is not delivering the amount of affordable housing sought in the
JCS, and the economic viability of delivering affordable housing has been identified
as a key issue in the Garden Communities and other sites. The unaffordability of
housing can have significant social consequences, including for those on low
incomes and key workers.

12 Independent Review of Build Out — Final Report, Rt Hon. Sir Oliver Letwin, October 2018
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment data/file
/752124/Letwin _review web version.pdf

13 Independent Review into scaling up self-build and custom housebuilding, Richard Bacon MP, August 2021
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1013928
/Bacon_Review.pdf

14 https://landregistry.data.gov.uk/app/ukhpi

25
Page 47


https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/752124/Letwin_review_web_version.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/752124/Letwin_review_web_version.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/752124/Letwin_review_web_version.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/752124/Letwin_review_web_version.pdf
https://landregistry.data.gov.uk/app/ukhpi
https://landregistry.data.gov.uk/app/ukhpi

Within the context of the overall housing requirement, the NPPF sets out that the
size, type and tenure of housing needed for different groups in the community should
be assessed and reflected in planning policies. This work will be informed by the
HENA, and will also inform the following:

e The level of affordable housing that needs to be provided for and the size,
type and tenure, including what threshold should be applied.

e What the specific needs are for specialist accommodation, such as sheltered
housing, extra care housing and care homes, residential care and supported
living. This will need to take account of the age profile of the area and
recognise an increasingly ageing population.

e Types and tenures of housing.

Consultation question:

13. Are there any particular types of specialist housing that you feel there
should be more of. Do you have any evidence to support this?

How do we ensure the houses are of good quality and fit for purpose?

To ensure that North Northamptonshire continues to be an attractive place to live the
guality of housing is important. The government recognised this by introducing the
following optional national standards:

e Accessibility and wheelchair housing standards
e Water efficiency standards
e Internal space standards

The JCS applies these optional standards and some of the Part 2 Local Plans take
this forward. The evidence being undertaken to identify specific housing needs will
need to consider the need for, and how these standards should be applied moving
forward.

Following a public consultation on measures to reduce personal water use in 2019,
the Government published a Written Ministerial Statement'® in July 2021
encouraging local authorities to adopt a tighter standard of 110 litres per person per
day for new homes where appropriate, and a roadmap towards greater water
efficiency in new developments and through retrofits, including options such as
rainwater harvesting, water re-use and storage options. These measures will help
meet the ambitions set out in the Environment Agency’s National Framework for
Water Resources. Policy 9 of the JCS includes the tighter water efficiency standard
which sets out that all residential development should incorporate measures to limit
use of water to 110 litres per person per day for areas of water stress.

Government announced changes to the Building Regulations that will take effect in
June 2022 as part of its response to the Future Building Standards consultation.
Under the new regulations, CO2 emissions from new build homes must be around
30% lower than current standards and emissions from other new buildings, including

15 Reducing demand for water, 1 July 2021 https://questions-statements.parliament.uk/written-
statements/detail/2021-07-01/hcws140

26

Page 48


https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/the-future-buildings-standard
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/the-future-buildings-standard

offices and shops, must be reduced by 27%. These changes will raise standards and
are an important step towards a cleaner greener built environment, paving the way
for the Future Homes and Buildings Standard in 2025, which will mean all future
homes are net zero ready and will not need retrofitting.

The Strategic Plan will explore the potential to exceed Building Regulation energy
efficiency standards in advance of the introduction of the Future Homes and
Buildings Standard.

Consultation questions:

14. Should the Strategic Plan maintain the approach to accessibility and space
standards that are set out in the JCS? Is there any evidence to support
exceeding these?

15. Could the Strategic Plan improve the approach to environmental standards
in homes? If so, what could be improved and is there any evidence to support
this?

Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation

A Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation Assessment for North Northamptonshire was
published in March 20198, It sets out pitch and plot requirements for the period 2018
to 2033 for the permanent and temporary accommodation needs for both gypsies
and travellers and travelling show people.

Currently a dual approach to traveller site/pitch provision is adopted in North
Northamptonshire. The JCS includes Policy 31 that allows sites coming forward
through the planning application process to be considered. The Part 2 Local Plans
and emerging Local Development Scheme refer to the preparation of a North
Northamptonshire Gypsy and Traveller Sites Allocation Policy Development Plan
Document that will identify sites to meet the accommodation needs of gypsies and
travellers and travelling show people.

Improving the standard of new and existing homes and ensuring housing supply
meets demand is a priority for the Corporate Plan. Having no permanent
accommodation can adversely affect any traveller. Providing permanent and
temporary accommodation improves the ability to meet other primary needs,
especially health, education, and access to employment.

The Council is seeking to commission consultants to undertake additional work to
better understand the accommodation needs and a variety of options to meet these
needs. Options for making provision, which will be properly assessed through the
development plan process and planning applications, could include extensions of
existing lawful sites, accommodating additional pitches on existing lawful sites,
potential enforcement of sites occupied by non-travellers, and new site provision.

16 North Northamptonshire Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation Assessment, March 2019
https://www.corby.gov.uk/sites/default/files/files/North%20Northamptonshire%20Gypsy%20%26%
20Traveller%20Accommodation%20Assessment.pdf

27

Page 49


https://www.corby.gov.uk/sites/default/files/files/North%20Northamptonshire%20Gypsy%20%26%20Traveller%20Accommodation%20Assessment.pdf
https://www.corby.gov.uk/sites/default/files/files/North%20Northamptonshire%20Gypsy%20%26%20Traveller%20Accommodation%20Assessment.pdf
https://www.corby.gov.uk/sites/default/files/files/North%20Northamptonshire%20Gypsy%20%26%20Traveller%20Accommodation%20Assessment.pdf
https://www.corby.gov.uk/sites/default/files/files/North%20Northamptonshire%20Gypsy%20%26%20Traveller%20Accommodation%20Assessment.pdf

A key issue to consider is whether the criteria for assessing planning applications
and site allocations set out in Policy 31 of the JCS remains appropriate and relevant
to inform these options.

Consultation questions:

16. Do you agree with the current policy approach to accommodating gypsies
and travellers and travelling show people? Please explain your answer.

17. 1s Policy 31 of the Joint Core Strategy still appropriate for assessing
planning applications? Are there any changes you would like to see and why?

Housing in Multiple Occupation

Houses in Multiple Occupation, or HMOs as they are commonly referred to, are
recognised as meeting important and specific housing needs. However, concern has
been expressed by local councillors and residents in some areas of North
Northamptonshire about the number, distribution and impact of HMOs. Some of
these comments have suggested that it may be appropriate to restrict the scope of
permitted development rights with the application of Article 4 direction to enable the
creation of new HMOs to be managed in these areas.

In response to these concerns and suggestions, the Council is undertaking an
exercise to investigate the options available to effectively control and manage
HMOs. Initial investigative work has highlighted that there is no specific policy in the
existing Local Plan that relates specifically to HMOs applications.

It is recognised that there are policies that relate to the considerations required to
assess the suitability of an application for HMOs, such as Policy 8 of the JCS which
ensures that development responds to the site’s immediate character and protects
the amenity by not resulting in an unacceptable impact upon future occupiers or
neighbouring residents, however, strengthening the planning policy position through
the inclusion of a specific policy within the Strategic Plan for assessing the suitability
of an application for HMOs is potentially an option that could be explored further.
This could comprise clear guidance to prospective developers of HMOs on the key
standards, assessments, and evidence that the Council require to properly consider
and assess applications.

Consultation question:

18. Should the Strategic Plan contain a policy regarding Housing in Multiple
Occupation? If yes, please explain.

28

Page 50



Economic Growth Corporate Plan Priorities:

The Strategic Plan will set out an economic vision and 1. Active, fulfilled lives
strategy to strengthen and diversify the economy. Existing «  Tackle the causes of complex
sectoral strengths, opportunities provided by the Oxford- problems such as poverty and
Cambridge Arc and implications arising from the Covid-19 homelessness

pandemic including changes to working patterns will be 3. Safe and thriving places

Important considerations. e  Strengthen the cultural identity of

towns, villages and rural communities

The plan will also set out an overall jobs target for North e Help town centres and villages
Northamptonshire, distribution of this and identification of respond to changing trends

. . . . Attract tourism, visitors and inward
strategic locations for new employment land. The HENA will investment
provide evidence to inform the employment strategy and Working with local businesses and
land . partners to support the creation of
and requirements. high-quality, better-skilled jobs

. i e Enable people to travel across North
The JCS aims to make North Northamptonshire more Northamptonshire and beyond

economically self-reliant by achieving a sustainable balance
between local jobs and workers and a more prosperous and
diverse economy. Key elements of this strategy include

4. Greener, sustainable
environment

planning for enough jobs to match the forecast growth in ¢ Embed '%W Cgrbon techdnologyy

e . sustained and improve reen
labour force plus an additional number in the southern area infrastructure, anf, sustaﬁ]abmforms
of North Northamptonshire to reduce reliance on out- of transport fit for the future
commuting, resulting in a target for 31,100 net additional ¢ Protectthe countryside and open
A K N . spaces, and enhance the natural
jobs over the period 2011-2031. In addition, the JCS aims to environment and ecology

ensure the right amount and type of employment land is

available in locations that balance the demands of the
market with the capacity of infrastructure and the need to protect and where possible
enhance the environment.

Business Register and Employment Survey (BRES) data indicates that in the period
2011-2020 North Northamptonshire has delivered a net increase of 22,000 jobs and
would appear to be well on its way to meeting job targets. However, this data does
not take account of the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic, and it will be important to
monitor this closely.

Sectoral strengths and opportunities

The JCS identifies sectoral strengths and opportunities in logistics, high performance
technologies, particularly related to motorsport and renewable and low carbon
energy and green technologies. Existing sector strengths identified in the North
Northamptonshire Economic prospectus!’ include Logistics, Manufacturing, Retail
and Leisure and Visitor economy including tourism.

17 This Economic Prospectus presents an overarching economic narrative for North Northamptonshire to
articulate existing economic strengths and USPs and focus attention on key opportunity areas to maximise its
growth potential and realise growth priorities. It is placed within the context of the area’s wider amenity offer
and underpinning place shaping ambitions which seek to ensure that development is genuinely sustainable
and inclusive by creating places where people want to live, work and do business.

29

Page 51


https://www.ons.gov.uk/searchdata?q=BRES
https://www.ons.gov.uk/searchdata?q=BRES

From a commercial property market perspective'®, North Northamptonshire
accommodates two broad market areas. The main focus of market activity is
industrial (General Industrial and Logistics), with office markets considered to be
weaker and more secondary.

North Northamptonshire has seen strong growth and demand for logistics due to its
central location and excellent strategic road connections. As land supply has
tightened in the ‘Golden Triangle’!®, availability of sites has decreased and
occupation costs have increased, making sites in areas such as North
Northamptonshire more attractive. The Strategic Plan and evidence being developed
will need to consider how to respond to the demand for logistics floorspace and
consider how the potential economic benefits can be balanced against impacts,
including impacts of HGV movements including emissions, visual, landscape and
amenity impacts.

Despite being one of the fastest growing areas in the UK in recent years in terms of
housing delivery, and with tens of thousands more houses in the pipeline, North
Northamptonshire has struggled to deliver higher value jobs and has lagged behind
other areas of the Arc in this respect with our Gross Value Added?® (GVA) amongst
the lowest in the Arc. The economic base of some parts of North Northamptonshire
has been characterised by low skilled and low paid activities, with wages not keeping
up with the cost of housing to create issues of local affordability, despite being one of
the most affordable parts of the Arc. There are a number of constraints which are
hampering development in the wider area, including viability, electrical capacity and
access to suitable workforce.

A key challenge for the Strategic Plan will be to deliver higher-value, higher skilled
employment and routes into such employment. Against the backdrop of the Oxford-
Cambridge Arc and national Industrial Strategy, significant opportunities exist to
achieve a step change in the area’s commercial property market performance, if
suitable infrastructure and sites can be provided to attract and grow high value,
innovative business activity to complement ongoing population and housing growth.
This will also require provision of sufficient skilled training facilities and resources,
enterprise support and Research & Development through links to universities, further
education.

The Economic prospectus?! identifies sector opportunities and growth potential as
renewable and low carbon energy (referencing Chelveston Renewable Energy Park
as a case study), high performance technologies, life sciences and construction.
Opportunities for renewable energy creation/use will be explored in the Strategic
Plan with work to be commissioned to inform this.

The visitor economy is identified as a sector strength in the economic prospectus.
The prospectus recognises that North Northamptonshire offers iconic landscapes

18 Commercial property market analysis in North Northamptonshire Investment Framework p26-27

1% In the East Midlands, the industrial market is dominated by the logistics Golden Triangle, where the M42,
M1 and M6 motorways meet and where most of the UK population can be accessed in a four-hour drive.

20 GVA is used a measure of productivity

21 http://www.nnjpdu.org.uk/site/assets/files/1459/16461_nn_economic_prospectus_final_26_06_20.pdf

30

Page 52



and outdoor activities that support a growing visitor economy. The area is home to
beautiful unspoilt countryside, historic market towns and attractive villages, together
with a unique collection of historic houses and diverse range of arts festivals and
other cultural events. This is complemented by an ever-expanding leisure and
hospitality offer within the area’s urban centres. These provide opportunities to
enhance the tourism offer whilst protecting and enhancing assets.

The prospectus sets out that the key opportunity for North Northamptonshire going
forward is to align new employment generation with sector opportunities identified
across the wider Oxford-Cambridge Arc economic area, and in doing so, support
higher value business growth and activity. The Strategic Plan and its evidence base
will consider how to capitalise on these opportunities and will set the strategic priority
framework for supporting the creation of high-quality, better skilled jobs.

Although the plan will need to plan for employment needs and land requirements,
North Northamptonshire has a significant over-supply of employment land,
particularly in the Corby and Kettering areas. The Strategic Plan and evidence base
being developed will need to consider whether sites that have not come forward
should be de-allocated or brought forward for another use or whether alternative
methods of delivery can be used e.g. public sector delivery.

Skills

A key element in delivering higher value jobs relates to skills and this is a key priority
within the Corporate Plan. This includes supporting key sectors such as construction
and renewable energy. Education and training are at the heart of government plans
to level up left behind areas. North Northamptonshire has consistently been one of
the fastest growing areas in the UK yet despite this it has no Higher Education facility
for local residents to access, with the result being a net loss of people (particularly
younger residents) from the area, and who often do not return.

Consultation questions:

19. What can the Strategic Plan do to support the delivery of committed
employment sites?

20. Should any existing employment allocations be de-allocated/used for
another use? If so which sites and for what use?

21. Should new sites be identified for employment uses? If so, where and for
what type of employment?

22. How should the demand for logistics be addressed in the area?
23. How can the Strategic Plan deliver high quality, better skilled jobs?

24. How can the Strategic Plan help to promote better training and further and
higher education opportunities?

25. How should the Strategic Plan encourage appropriate tourism
opportunities?

31

Page 53



Town Centres —
Corporate Plan Priorities:

North Northamptonshire consists of a network of 12 town
centres from the Growth Towns to Market Towns. The town
centres in North Northamptonshire are the focus for retail, *  Improve the accessibility and use of
. - . . g leisure, culture, art and sport
leisure and cultural facilities and provide significant o
employment. They also act as the heart of their communities | 3. Safe and thriving places
and serve their surrounding rural areas, whilst also offering «  Strengthen the cultural identity of

opportunities for regeneration over the coming years. towns, villages and rural communities
. Help town centres and villages

respond to changing trends
. Attract tourism, visitors and inward

1. Active, fulfilled lives

The JCS retail strategy seeks to maintain and regenerate

Kettering and Corby town centres as the focus of higher investment

order facilities and retail investment serving growing *  Working with local businesses and
. K i partners to support the creation of

communities in the north of North Northamptonshire, high-quality, better-skilled jobs

including a minimum increase of 12,500 sqm net comparison | ¢  mprove the standard of new and

. . . existing homes and ensure housing
shopping floorspace in each of Corby and Kettering town supply meets demand

centres by 2031. In the south of North Northamptonshire, the | * Enable people to travel across North

) ) ) Northamptonshire and beyond
retail strategy recognises that the Rushden Lakes retail and orTAmpTonSTITE and oeyen

leisure development will account for most, if not all, of the
forecast additional comparison spending in the southern area and will also divert
some trade from existing shopping locations.

Town centres across North Northamptonshire have changed and evolved
significantly over recent years, due to the growth in online shopping, the Covid-19
pandemic, which has had, and continues to have a significant impact, and the
opening of the Rushden Lakes development. Changes to Permitted Development
rights will also affect the future of town centres. As shopping patterns have changed,
cultural led regeneration is evolving the way town centres connect with people in
North Northamptonshire, so they continue to act as the heart of the community. The
Corporate Plan sets out that the Council will reimagine and redesign key town
centres to help respond to changing trends in shopping, leisure and living, with
developed masterplans and identification of opportunities for public realm
improvements.

Town centre regeneration is ongoing in North Northamptonshire and the area has
benefitted from significant funding to deliver this. Kettering has received funding to
deliver a High Street Heritage Action Zone?? (HSHAZ) and Corby has been awarded
£19.9m of the government’s Towns Fund, it is hoped the money will pay for a new
sixth form centre and an improved walking and cycling route from the town centre to
the railway station. Government funding is also being provided through the ‘Welcome
Back Fund?®.

22 A Historic England initiative intended to "Breathe new life into our town centres by revitalising buildings and
helping to regenerate a vibrant place for locals, businesses and visitors

23 The Welcome Back Fund is providing councils across England a share of £56 million from the European
Regional Development Fund (ERDF) to support the safe return to high streets and help build back better from
the pandemic. https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/welcome-back-fund

32

Page 54


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/welcome-back-fund
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/welcome-back-fund

The Strategic Plan will provide updated policy guidance and strategy for town
centres and retail development taking account of the impact of policy changes and
social/economic implications including Covid-19. This will include a review of
comparison floorspace requirements. It will be necessary to think about how the
Council will reimagine and redesign key town centres and how the Strategic Plan
can support regeneration and economic recovery from Covid 19 as well as ensure
that town centres play a role in helping to address the climate emergency, meet
housing needs, provide necessary services and facilities, and support people’s
health and wellbeing. Updated retail and town centre evidence is being
commissioned to inform this approach.

Beyond the town centres are a variety of out-of-centre locations, including the
significant Rushden Lakes shopping and leisure scheme. The Strategic Plan will
need to consider the future role of out-of-centre locations.

Consultation questions:

26. How can the Strategic Plan support town centres so they continue to act as

the heart of their communities?

27. What should the future role of Rushden Lakes and other out-of-centre
locations be?

Page 55

33



Strategic Development Locations and
Opportunities

Strategic sites that are key to the delivery of the spatial
strategy will be identified in the plan. The current strategic
sites threshold in the JCS is 500+ dwellings or 5+ ha of
employment land and the Strategic Plan will consider
whether this threshold should be amended or retained. As
discussed earlier, Garden Communities are key elements of
the Strategic Plan which will consider their potential for
further expansion.

The location of strategic sites will be a key consideration in
the context of climate-change and ensuring future
development contributes to a reduction in carbon
emissions. Future infrastructure opportunities and
investment will be important considerations in determining
these potential locations. The Strategic Plan will define
clear development principles for sites identified in the plan.
A ‘Call for Sites’ was launched in January 2022 where
interested parties were invited to submit potential sites for
consideration in the plan and potential sites can be
submitted via XXXXX.

Consultation question:

28. Should the strategic sites threshold of 500+
dwellings or 5+ ha of employment land be retained or
amended? Please provide reasons for amendments.

Page 56

Corporate Plan Priorities:

3. Safe and thriving places

Strengthen the cultural identity of
towns, villages and rural communities
Help town centres and villages
respond to changing trends

Attract tourism, visitors and inward
investment

Working with local businesses and
partners to support the creation of
high-quality, better-skilled jobs
Improve the standard of new and
existing homes and ensure housing
supply meets demand

Tackle the causes of difficult issues
leading to nuisance, crime and anti-
social behaviour

Maintain our highways infrastructure
to keep people moving safely around
North Northamptonshire

Enable people to travel across North
Northamptonshire and beyond

4. Greener, sustainable
environment

Promote sustainable, active travel

Embed low carbon technology,
sustained and improved green
infrastructure, and sustainable forms
of transport fit for the future

Protect the countryside and open
spaces, and enhance the natural
environment and ecology

34




Infrastructure Corporate Plan Priorities:

Infrastructure must be considered in its widest sense and 1. Active, fulfilled lives
!nclut_jfe all systems and services to support grqwth. The JCS |, Improve the accessibility and use of
identifies 3 broad types of infrastructure- Physical leisure, culture, art and sport

(necessary to connect homes and workplaces to the wider
environment such as transport, waste, utilities to meet the
day to day needs), Green (to provide green spaces and

3. Safe and thriving places

. Strengthen the cultural identity of
towns, villages and rural communities

habitat to allow ecosystems to function alongside «  Help town centres and villages
development and includes land and water) and Social (to respond to changing trends .
. . . . Attract tourism, visitors and inward
ensure that the communities can function effectively and investment
covers a wide range of assets such as education, *  Working with local businesses and
- . . partners to support the creation of
healthcare, sports facilities and libraries). high-quality, better-skilled jobs
. . ) e  Maintain our highways infrastructure
All three infrastructure types are required to deliver to keep people moving safely around

sustainable communities that function effectively. It is also North Northamptonshire
e Enable people to travel across North

critical that this infrastructure is delivered alongside Northamptonshire and beyond
development in a timely manner to the benefit of existing

_ 4. Greener, sustainable
and new residents.

environment

An important prlnmplc_a in the JCS that will be taken forward e  Promote sustainable, active travel
in the Strategic Plan is that new development should be e  Embed low carbon technology,
located and designed to minimise its demand on sustained and improved green

. " . .. infrastructure, and sustainable forms
infrastructure, and that any additional impacts arising as a of transport fit for the future

result of development can be effectively mitigated through e  Protect the countryside and open
delivery of new or expanded, high quality infrastructure. The spaces, and enhance the natural

environment and ecology

design, layout and location of development can minimise the

need for or make more efficient use of some items of infrastructure. Where there is
a need related to new developments then contributions towards its delivery will be
secured from the development. The Strategic Plan will need to consider the
mechanisms for funding and delivering infrastructure and demonstrate that its
proposals can be delivered. Currently infrastructure required as a result of
development is delivered largely through Section 106 developer contributions.
Proposals to replace the Community Infrastructure Levy and Section 106 with a new
consolidated Infrastructure Levy were published by government as part of the
Planning White Paper consultation but no decision has been made on this. Other
funding sources will be considered where appropriate to enhance and improve
infrastructure provision throughout North Northamptonshire.

Current infrastructure priorities to deliver planned growth to 2031 are set out in the
North Northamptonshire Investment Framework (NNIF). The NNIF identifies
infrastructure pressures and pinch points as factors affecting delivery, most notably
congestion and capacity issues along key strategic highways networks in North
Northamptonshire such as the A14, A43 and A45 corridor. Beyond transport, there is
reported to be some capacity constraints within the area’s electricity network, with
solutions required to connect new developments to the grid, including low and
renewable technologies. When upgrades do occur to the electricity network, this
tends to be approached in a piecemeal, rather than strategic way that anticipates

35

Page 57



future development and associated demand. This creates challenges, including for
District Network Operators connections for Electric Vehicle charge points. The
requirement for strategic upgrades to North Northamptonshire’s electricity network
has been recognised for some time.

In parts of North Northamptonshire, particularly areas with lower land values, viability
impacts on the delivery of infrastructure and affordable housing. The NNIF identified
that the highest priority infrastructure projects had a funding shortfall of just under
£316m, based on a ‘point-in-time’ snapshot at June 2019. This shortfall represents
the tip of the iceberg for North Northamptonshire. Viability will be an important
consideration as the NNSP is developed.

The Strategic Plan will identify the key infrastructure required to deliver the strategy
such as strategic transport schemes, utility networks, green infrastructure and
community facilities including schools. The Corporate Plan sets out that providing a
range of accessible leisure, sports and play facilities and attractive open spaces will
be important in helping people to live active, fulfilled lives. This will be informed by a
re-fresh of the infrastructure evidence base, including updated transport modelling
work to ensure that all forms of movement infrastructure are identified and planned
for.

There is a need to improve access to digital connectivity (such as in rural areas) by,
for example, securing efficient full fibre broadband provision for all. Full fibre ensures
that speeds can increase to keep up with demand which will continue to grow at
even faster rates as more devices and services become connected and richer data
needs to be transmitted. This is now even more critical given the effects of the
Covid-19 pandemic and the shift for many people and businesses to home working.
Addressing this matter is vital in ensuring the continuation of business growth and
innovation, improving access for residents to services and opportunities in ways that
enrich lives, reduce the need to travel, and which in turn also contributes to the
decarbonisation of the transport network and the realisation of technology driven
benefits in all sectors.

Supporting the decarbonisation of the transport sector will be an important element
of the Strategic Plan. The plan will identify future opportunities to achieve
connectivity through sustainable modes of transport and active travel, a priority in the
Corporate Plan. In terms of distance, the main towns of North Northamptonshire are
located relatively close to one another, however there is a distinctly rural nature
between settlements. This presents opportunities to deliver modal shift for travel
between these locations. Green Infrastructure and new walking and cycling routes
provide an opportunity to facilitate modal shift in a location where the travel to work
area is relatively contained (people travel small distances) but car use still
dominates. Initiatives such as the Greenway and Ise Valley Way could act as
exemplars for the wider Arc area in delivering walking and cycling infrastructure,
including opportunities provided by green infrastructure corridors.

36

Page 58



Consultation question:

29. What are the key infrastructure priorities that need to be delivered in North
Northamptonshire and how can they be best be delivered?

37

Page 59



Place-making/sustainable development Corporate Plan Priorities:

Central to the economic vision and overall growth 1. Active, fulfilled lives
strategy for North Northamptonshlre is an ambitious «  Improve the accessibility and use of
agenda for ‘place shaping’, to ensure that growth leisure, culture, art and sport
and development is genuinely sustainable and «  Tackle the causes of complex problems
inclusive by creating places where people want to such as poverty and homelessness
live, work and do business, now and in the future. 3. Safe and thriving places
Great places go beyond aesthetics and visual «  Strengthen the cultural identity of towns,
appearance. Place-making encompasses social and villages and rural communities
economic opportunity, creating an environment that *  Help town centres and villages respond to
supports health, wellbeing and contributes to the changing trends
quality of people’s life. They are safe and inclusive, *  Attract tourism, visitors and inward
. . investment
well planned, built and run, and offer equality of esime
opportunity and good services for all and promote a *  Working with local businesses and
partners to support the creation of high-

green economy. quality, better-skilled jobs
The National Planning Policy Framework and ¢ Improve the standard of new and existing

. . homes and ensure housing supply meets
National Model Design Code makes clear that demand
creating hlgh qua“ty bwldmgs and places IS e  Tackle the causes of difficult issues leading
fundamental to the planning and development to nuisance, crime and anti-social
process, with specific emphasis on the need to behaviour
create high quality sustainable places that address +  Enable people to travel across North

climate resilience and health and wellbeing. Northamptonshire and beyond

. . . . 4. Greener, sustainable environment
The Strategic Plan will play a key role in responding

to the changing national policy context in relation to ®  Promote sustainable, active travel
design. It will reflect the corporate ambition to drive :

. . . \ ® Embed low carbon technology, sustained
up the quality of design and provide strong design and improved green infrastructure, and
and place-shaping policies, building on the existing flftit;'”ab'e“"ms of transport fit for the

policy framework provided in the JCS.

The JCS provides a robust policy framework to shape North Northamptonshire which
includes increased protection for North Northamptonshire’s cultural and
environmental assets, stronger recognition of the importance of the natural
environment and the opportunities it provides, and greater emphasis on urban
design principles and how places could change for the better.

To create sustainable places, all development is assessed against the North
Northamptonshire Place Shaping Principles set out in Policy 8 of the JCS which
provides a checklist of the key issues that need to be considered by development in
delivering the highest possible quality of development sought by the plan. These
principles seek to ensure that development proposals support strong, vibrant and
healthy communities, which, where possible, make physical activity easy to do and
create inclusive places and spaces that support community engagement. Policy 8
and these principles will be updated and strengthened in the Strategic Plan.

38

Page 60



The Council also supports Building for a Healthy Life (BHL) 2020 as a valuable tool
in assessing and shaping development proposals and has previously used its
predecessor (BfL12) to assess design quality in the area as part of the AMR.

With the increased emphasis at the national level for place-making to support health
and wellbeing, it will be essential that the Strategic Plan seeks to address health
inequalities to ensure that no communities/populations are left behind when realising
the ambitions for North Northamptonshire. Many of the existing health inequalities
have been exposed throughout Covid-19 and in many cases exacerbated.

The Strategic Plan will update and strengthen the policies in the JCS to help shape
places where health and wellbeing is considered in every element of development
and where inequalities in health and wellbeing are reduced. Apart from obvious
benefits to people’s well-being, this should also assist in reducing demands on the
local NHS and social care services.

There are several elements to place-making and creating sustainable communities.
The Strategic Plan will seek to take forward the key principles set out below, which
relate to all elements of it and have been discussed within this document. Many of

these are already contained within the JCS.

Key Principles for Place-making and Sustainable Communities

1. Active, inclusive and safe - Fair, tolerant and cohesive with a strong local culture
and other shared community activities

Development proposals will support strong, vibrant and healthy communities where
people feel safe, healthy, socially connected and proud of where they live.

2. Environmentally sensitive - providing places for people to live that are
considerate of the environment

New development will respect and make use of the natural and historic character of
North Northamptonshire and ensure that all residents and visitors can benefit from
the advantages these characteristics offer.

3. Well designed and built - featuring quality built and natural environment

Sustainable communities offer:

o sense of place - a place with a positive ‘feeling' for people and local
distinctiveness

o user-friendly public and green spaces with facilities for everyone including
children and older people

o sufficient range, diversity, affordability and accessibility of housing within a
balanced housing market

o appropriate size, scale, density, design and layout, including mixed-use
development, that complement the distinctive local character of the
community

o high quality, mixed-use, durable, flexible and adaptable buildings, using
materials which minimise negative environmental impacts

39

Page 61



o buildings and public spaces which promote health and are designed to reduce
crime and make people feel safe

o accessibility of jobs, key services and facilities by public transport, walking
and cycling.

4. Well connected - with good transport services and communication linking people
to jobs, schools, health and other services

Sustainable communities offer:

o transport facilities, including public transport, that help people travel within and
between communities and reduce dependence on cars

o facilities to encourage safe local walking and cycling

o an appropriate level of local parking facilities in line with local plans to manage
road traffic demand

o widely available and effective telecommunications and Internet access

o good access to regional, national and international communications networks.

5. Thriving Community/offer - with a flourishing and diverse local economy

Sustainable communities feature:
o a wide range of jobs and training opportunities
o sufficient suitable land and buildings to support economic prosperity and
change
o dynamic job and business creation, with benefits for the local community
o a strong business community with links into the wider economy
o economically viable and attractive town centres.

7. Future proofed - climate resilient, adaptable and fit for the future

Development should be fit for the future and incorporate resilience to climate change
as well as allowing flexibility to adapt to new smart technology such as that emerging
for independent living.

Consultation question:

30. Are these the correct place-making principles for the Strategic Plan or are
there any others that need to be considered?

40

Page 62



Natural and Historic Environment Corporate Plan Priorities:

Protecting and enhancing our natural and historic 1. Active, fulfilled lives
environment in the area is fundamental to delivering a | -
. . . o mprove the accessibility and use of
sustainable development strategy. The environment is our leisure, culture, art and sport
most va_IuabIe asset and underpins our wellbeing and 3. Safe and thriving places
prosperity.
. Strengthen the cultural identity of
Our rich heritage contributes to local character and towns, villages and rural communities
disti . d will h infl h . Help town centres and villages
istinctiveness and will have a strong influence on the respond to changing trends

spatial strategy of the plan and the identification of suitable *  Attract tourism, visitors and inward
. . i t t
development locations. It will also be at the core of our nvestmen

approach to responding to climate change. We draw from 4. Greener, sustainable

the environment all we need to live (food, water, air and environment

energy for growth) so protecting and enhancing the «  Demonstrate clear leadership on

environment is critical for the next generation to flourish. tackling environmental sustainability
® Embed low carbon technology,

The corporate plan sets out as a key priority demonstrating _SUfstained and imzroved gresln f

. . . . . tructure, t

clear leadership on tackling environmental sustainability of transport fit for the future.

and the Strategic Plan can be one mechanism to help e  Protect the countryside and open

deliver this. spaces, and enhance the natural

environment and ecology

North Northamptonshire is well placed to be an exemplar of
sustainable living and working. The JCS already includes a vision to be ‘a showpiece
for modern green living and well managed sustainable development: a resilient area
where local choices have increased the ability to adapt to the impacts of climate
change and to global economic changes.’

The environment needs to be considered in its widest sense and the Strategic Plan
will contain policies to ensure resources are used sustainably and efficiently, that
there is reduced harm from environmental hazards such as flooding and that we
seek to improve air quality.

It is a key ambition of the plan to leave the environment in a better state than it is
now. That means achieving an environmental net gain.

Natural Capital

The concept of natural capital lies at the heart of North Northamptonshire’s growth
strategy which recognises the importance of the natural environment and the
opportunities it provides to enhance economic prosperity, productivity and inward
investment. We also recognise the importance of accessible, good quality natural
environments to encourage community cohesion, activity and healthy living.

Natural Capital is ‘the sum of our ecosystems, species, freshwater, land soils,
minerals, our air and our seas. These are all elements of nature that either directly or
in directly bring value to people and the country at large. They do this in many ways

41

Page 63



but chiefly by providing us with food, clean air and water, wildlife, energy, wood,
recreation and protection from hazards’?*

Recognising the complex ways in which natural social and economic systems
interact enables us to make better decisions that protect and enhance the services
and benefits that we need. Biodiversity net gain is a primary driver for growing
natural capital, with healthy, diverse and resilient ecosystems essential to underpin
the delivery of a wide range of services and long-term benefits for people and
places.

Our principle is to take a biodiversity first approach that is founded upon and
complements the requirements in the Environment Act 2021 for mandatory
Biodiversity Net Gain (BNG) and Local Nature Recovery Strategies, whereby
environmental enhancement should deliver BNG first and this cannot be traded off
against other Natural Capital benefits.

Biodiversity and Biodiversity net gain

The Environment Act, which was passed in November 2021, will require all new
developments to deliver a mandatory minimum 10% net biodiversity gain from 2023.
Other key components of the Act include the opportunity to enter conservation
covenants and register off site biodiversity gains. There is also a requirement to
prepare Nature Recovery Strategies. These will be key components to feed into the
preparation of the Strategic Plan.

The Environmental Principles for the Oxford-Cambridge Arc are seeking a
biodiversity gain of 20% to reflect the ambition to be world leaders on environmental
ambitions. There is also a target to double the area of land managed primarily for
nature and to increase tree and woodland cover across the Arc from 7.4% to 19%.
There are considerable opportunities to engage with the desire to double nature,
increase tree planting and increase biodiversity gain within North Northamptonshire
through projects including within the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits Special
Protection Area (SPA) and the Rockingham Forest.

The SPA is internationally recognised for its significance as a wetland habitat for
birds. Development could potentially pose threats to the SPA through increased
disturbance through human activity, loss of supporting habitat or changes in
ecological condition. The plan will need to ensure that the SPA is suitably protected
and where possible enhanced. There is an existing mitigation strategy associated
with the JCS, this will be reviewed to ensure that it remains fit for purpose. The need
to protect this important habitat may influence the spatial strategy of the plan. It also
however provides an opportunity to enhance the biodiversity of the area.

Green and Blue Infrastructure Corridors

Green Infrastructure (Gl) including blue infrastructure comprising the network of
rivers and lakes, is a strategically planned and delivered network comprising the
broadest range of high-quality green spaces and other environmental features. It

24 A Green Future: Our 25 Year Plan to Improve the Environment, HM Government, 2018

42

Page 64



should be designed and managed as a multi-functional resource capable of
delivering ecosystem services and quality of life benefits. For example, Gl supports
healthier lifestyles, including opportunities for active travel, manages flood water,
improves air quality and helps to mitigate the effects of climate change.

Access to natural environments provides important health and well being benefits,
which we will want to maximise in the Strategic Plan. It will therefore be important to
ensure that the plan ensures that high quality natural spaces are provided in
locations which are accessible and that we seek to improve the equality of
sustainable access to nature and its benefits across the whole area. This will mean
ensuring accessible natural spaces are provided within existing settlements and as
part of new developments as well providing access to natural areas within the wider
countryside. The pandemic has highlighted the importance of access to local
greenspace for physical and mental health and to encourage social activity. The
provision of good quality green space for people and nature must be a fundamental
component of good place making. It will need to be considered whether the plan
should include standards for open space provision and whether existing standards in
the Part 2 Local Plans should be harmonised across North Northamptonshire.

The GI framework set out in the JCS and Part 2 Local Plans includes a network of
Sub-Regional and Local Corridors. The focus is on the strategic corridors of the
Rivers Nene and Ise, and the Rockingham Forest area and includes the open
countryside around urban areas, which is important to maintain distinct and separate
settlements. In some instances, there is limited connectivity to access the natural
greenspace from the main towns and opportunities need to be taken to link urban
parks and woodland into the wider countryside. As previously discussed, Green
Infrastructure and new cycle routes provide a particular opportunity to facilitate
modal shift to active travel and enhance connectivity between settlements.

This network provides opportunities to enhance tourism in North Northamptonshire,
while ensuring that its most sensitive assets are protected. The special policy areas
of the Nene and Ise Valleys and Rockingham Forest in the JCS are strategically
important in stimulating sustainable economic growth through tourism and rural
diversification and are being delivered through initiatives such as the Greenway and
Ise Valley Way. Evidence produced for the ASF identifies Rockingham Forest into
John Clare Country, Nene Valley and Sywell Wood as strategic-scale environmental
opportunity zones.

Consultation questions:

31. What are the key mechanisms the plan should use to achieve a net
environmental gain and how can this be measured?

32. Should the plan seek to introduce biodiversity net gain targets above the
mandated 10% and align to the Oxford — Cambridge Arc target of 20%?

33. Should the plan seek to identify opportunity areas for enhancing the
natural environment at a strategic scale? Should this include continuing to
identify green infrastructure corridors?

43

Page 65



34. Should the plan seek to introduce other environmental targets? If so, what
should they cover and how should they be measured?

35. How should the plan seek to improve equality of sustainable access to
nature and its benefits. Should the plan include standards of access to green
space?

Landscape Character

The landscape in North Northamptonshire has been influenced by a combination of
human and physical influences. These landscapes, both man-made and natural, are
what makes the area distinctive and there is a pressing need to conserve and
enhance many of the features of importance landscape settings, as well as
recognising the importance of views and vistas of these. A Landscape Character
Assessment which was undertaken in 2008 for the county and informed the JCS is
still relevant.

Some landscapes are more sensitive to change than others. Development can
impact on the landscape through its effects on the character and the quality of the
landscape and the degree to which development will become a significant or defining
feature in the landscape, including skyline (where additional development appears
disproportionately dominant), and loss of sense of remoteness. Visual impacts
concern the degree to which proposed development will become a feature in
particular views (or sequences of views) and the impacts this has on people
experiencing views. The JCS recognises the need to protect tranquillity in the King's
Cliffe Hills and Valleys Landscape Character Area. The Strategic Plan will update the
policy approach to ensure that proposals understand and respond to the character of
the landscape setting within which they are located.

Historic Environment

The historic environment is one of North Northamptonshire’s most valued assets. It
is an important element of the landscape and contributes to the individual character
and appearance of settlements. Responding appropriately to the historic
environment is a key principle of good place making. Elements of the historic
environment that hold significance are termed ‘heritage assets’ and include any
building, monument, site, place, area or landscape positively identified as having a
degree of significance meriting consideration in planning decisions. This includes
below ground archaeology. These assets are an irreplaceable resource that need to
be conserved so that they can be enjoyed for their contribution to the quality of life of
existing and future generations.

44

Page 66



Known heritage assets can be designated or non-designated. There are also new
sites being discovered all the time. North Northamptonshire has over 2800
designated heritage assets spread across its rural and urban landscapes.
Designated?®® heritage assets within North Northamptonshire include scheduled
monuments, listed buildings, registered parks and gardens, and conservation areas.
North Northamptonshire contains many heritage assets of national importance
including Grade 1 listed historic buildings and estates and their settings including
Lyveden New Bield, Apethorpe Hall, Rockingham Castle, Kirby Hall and Boughton
House. However, some of these assets are currently identified on the Historic
England ‘Heritage at Risk Register’ which identifies listed buildings, important historic
sites, places and landmarks that are at risk from neglect or decay.

Non-designated heritage assets are an important component of North
Northamptonshire and are at risk from the impact of development, or the cumulative
loss of structures. Non-designated heritage assets are identified by the local
planning authority through ‘Local Lists’.

The Strategic Plan will focus on strategic heritage issues and refresh and update the
policy approach to the historic environment. It will set a policy framework to ensure
the significance of heritage assets is appropriately considered through the
development management process and that there is appropriate preservation of
assets either in situ or by investigation and recording where appropriate.

Consultation questions:

36. Should the plan identify particular landscapes that are more sensitive to
change?

37. How should the plan set out a positive strategy for the conservation and
enjoyment of the historic environment?

%5 Designated assets are designated under statute and some, such as listed buildings, conservation areas and
scheduled monuments, benefit from statutory protection and require specific statutory duties to be exercised
or tests to be applied when assessing the impact of a development on them. They may also be subject to a
separate heritage consent regime

45

Page 67


https://historicengland.org.uk/advice/heritage-at-risk/search-register/
https://historicengland.org.uk/advice/heritage-at-risk/search-register/

Process and Next Steps

This consultation is the first stage in preparing the Strategic Plan and runs from
XXXX until XXXX.

It is important to clarify that at this stage no views have been formed on the scale of
growth, which sites and locations should be allocated for new development, how
existing policies should be updated or whether there should be any additional
policies. The responses to the Scope and Issues consultation document will inform
and contribute to the development of detailed planning policies and proposals at later
stages of the plan making process.

The next stage in the preparation of the Strategic Plan will be to develop a range of
potential spatial options to meet the level of growth we are planning for across North
Northamptonshire. We hope to consult on these Options later this year and all
responses made to this consultation will help us to develop these. The development
and consideration of spatial options will also need to take account of a range of
influences such as the plans of adjoining authorities.

Consultation question:

38. Are there any issues that you feel we have missed and should be
considered in the Strategic Plan?

Glossary of key terms

To be added

46

Page 68



North
-AA Northamptonshire

-——— Council

Equality Screening Assessment

The Equality Screening Assessment form must be completed to evidence what impact the proposal may have on equality groups within our community or
workforce. Any proposal that identifies a negative impact must have a full Equality Impact Assessment completed before the proposal progresses further.

1: Proposal
T Requirement Detail
8 Title of proposal North Northamptonshire Strategic Plan — Scope and Issues (Regulation
g 18) Consultation
© Type of proposal: new policy / change to policy / new service / change | Change to policy
to service / removal of service / project / event/ budget
What is the objective of this proposal? The North Northamptonshire Strategic Plan — Scope and Issues
consultation document (often referred to as Regulation 18 consultation?) >
invites comments on the key planning issues facing the area, and the O
proposed scope and contents of the new Strategic Plan. § 8
(1)
The North Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy was adopted in July ;‘; a
2016. There is a statutory requirement to undertake a review within five ® ; -

years of adoption. The North Northamptonshire Strategic Plan will review

! Regulation 18 of the Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012.



Requirement Detail

0/ abed

and where appropriate, replace the planning policies and proposals in the
North Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy. The Scope and Issues
consultation outlines the proposed scope of the North Northamptonshire
Strategic Plan as set out below. It is emphasised that this may be refined
subject to any changes to national and sub-regional guidance and in

response to consultation feedback.

e The spatial vision for North Northamptonshire — extended to
2050 to reflect the Oxford-Cambridge Arc Spatial Framework and
meet the requirements of the NPPF

e The approach to climate change — setting the framework for the|
local response to the climate emergency, building on existing
initiatives and setting priorities to deliver net zero carbon.

e The approach to Levelling Up — setting the framework for the
local response to addressing inequalities and setting priorities to
level up.

e The spatial strategy for the distribution of development —
including the roles of settlements and the distribution of housing,
employment, retail, leisure, and other commercial development.

e The housing requirement - the number of new homes to be
provided across North Northamptonshire and the distribution of

these. Within this context, the size, type, and tenure of housing

needed for different groups will be identified including the




Requirement

Detall

T/ abed

proportion of the overall housing requirement that should be
affordable and planning for the needs of an ageing population.
Economic Growth — an economic vision to strengthen and
diversity the economy, taking account of existing sectoral
strengths, opportunities provided by the Oxford-Cambridge Arc
and implications of Covid-19, including changes to working
patters. An overall jobs target for North Northamptonshire,
distribution of this and identification of new employment land
capable of meeting a wide variety of needs.

Town Centres — updated policy guidance and strategy for the
town centres and retail development taking account of the impact
of policy changes and social/economic implications including
Covid-19. This will focus on reimaging and redesigning town
centres to support regeneration and economic recovery from the
pandemic including opportunities for town centres to become
community service hubs with increased leisure and recreational
space.

Infrastructure — key infrastructure projects that are required to
deliver the strategy such as strategic transport schemes including
active travel, utility networks, community facilities, health,
education, emergency services infrastructure and site-specific
requirements.

Strategic Development Locations and Opportunities —

strategic sites that are key to the delivery of the spatial strategy




Requirement

Z/) abed

will be identified in the Plan. The strategic site threshold will be
refined as the plan is progressed, including consultation on its
scope. The locations of these sites will be a key consideration in
the context of climate change related risks and ensuring future
development contributes towards a reduction in carbon
emissions. The plan will define clear development principles for
these areas. These will provide the basis for design
codes/framework.

Place-making/sustainable development — key principles to
ensure high quality development that is sustainable and supports
local communities. The design and future sustainability of
development will be a key consideration in the approach to
climate change and the Strategic Plan will set out a stronger
approach to integrating land-use and transport considerations.
This will include a review and refresh of the Protecting Assets
policies in the Joint Core Strategy to ensure they are locally
distinctive as possible with increased emphasis on health and
wellbeing.

Natural and Historic Environment — key principles and
measures to achieve environmental net gain including the
protection, restoration, and enhancement of natural and historic
assets. This will include natural capital benefits such as flood
protection, recreation and improved water and air quality as well

as ensuring appropriate measures for internationally, nationally,




Requirement

Detall

¢ ) abed

and locally designated sites and priority habitats or protected
species. The Strategic Plan will seek to maximise the health and
wellbeing benefits of nature and accessibility to it. Opportunities tg
enhance the green and blue infrastructure network within North
Northamptonshire and maximise its wider benefits and
opportunities will be set out. The spatial strategy and place-
making approach will be influenced by the importance of the
natural and historic environment including the role they play in

creating local distinctiveness.

The Scope and Issues consultation document represents the first stage
in the Local Plan review process. It is important to clarify that at this stagg
the Council has not formed views on the scale of growth, which sites and
locations should be allocated for new development, how existing policies
should be updated or whether there should be any additional policies.
The responses to the Scope and Issues consultation document will
inform and contribute to the development of detailed planning policies
and proposals at later stages of the plan making process. As the plan is
developed consultation methods will be tailored accordingly with

emphasis on the right consultation with the right people at the right time.

Subsequent stages for the preparation and production of the Strategic

Plan, together with estimated dates, are set out below:




Requirement

Detall

¢ Options Consultation — November 2022

e Draft Plan Consultation — June 2023

e Publication Plan Consultation — November 2023
e Submission to the Secretary of State — April 2024
e Examination — September 2024

e Adoption — September 2025

Has there been/when will there be consultation on this proposal?

(List all the groups / communities, including dates)

7) abed

Preparation of the Strategic Plan will involve consultation with the local
communities and stakeholders at appropriate stages, in accordance with
relevant legislation and Statement of Community Involvement?. The
Scope and Issues consultation document is the first stage of the process.

Subsequent stages will be informed by the responses received.

The Statement of Community Involvement sets out the Council’s
commitment to eliminate any forms of discrimination and ensure that
consultation reaches everyone, including hard to reach groups who have

traditionally been under-represented in consultation exercises.

Planning Policy Officers liaised with colleagues in consultation and
engagement regarding the format of the consultation and consultation
methods to be used. A range of methods will be adopted in the

consultation events and publicity, including:

2 Draft North Northamptonshire Statement of Community of Involvement, December 2021 https://northnorthants.citizenspace.com/planning/north-
northamptonshire-statement-of-community-invo/supporting _documents/NNSCI%20consultation%20draft December%202021.pdf



https://northnorthants.citizenspace.com/planning/north-northamptonshire-statement-of-community-invo/supporting_documents/NNSCI%20consultation%20draft_December%202021.pdf
https://northnorthants.citizenspace.com/planning/north-northamptonshire-statement-of-community-invo/supporting_documents/NNSCI%20consultation%20draft_December%202021.pdf

Requirement

Detall

G/ abed

e consultation on documents for eight weeks where possible

¢ electronic communication and online representations will be used
as widely as possible as well as increased usage of social media
to inform the public about each stage of the consultation process

e as much information as possible will be made available on the
North Northamptonshire Council website

¢ Notification to those registered on the consultation database,
including groups representing travellers and faith groups.

e all consultation documents and key supporting material should
normally also be made available in hard copy as well as in
electronic format. In such instances these hard copies will be
made available for viewing at the main libraries and primary
offices of North Northamptonshire Council

¢ Member workshop to get feedback from all interested Members

e Drop-in sessions (format to be confirmed)

e Potential preparation of a summary document aimed at the public
and to support Town and Parish Council involvement in the

consultation.

Did the consultation on this proposal highlight any positive or negative

impact on protected groups? (If yes, give details)

Within the broad scope of issues to be considered within the North
Northamptonshire Strategic Plan - Scope and Issues consultation
document, it is considered there is scope to promote equality of

opportunity and positively impact on all sections of the community in




Requirement

Detall

abed

North Northamptonshire, including those who share a protected

characteristic.

The Scope and Issues consultation document is the first stage of the
process. It is important to emphasise that no decisions have yet been
made on the scale of growth or where that growth should be located, how
existing policies should be updated or whether there should be any
additional policies. As the Strategic Plan evolves and develops it may be
necessary to update the Equality Screening Assessment. This screening
assessment will be made available and published with the North
Northamptonshire Strategic Plan — Scope and Issues consultation

document.

What processes are in place to monitor and review the impact of this

9

proposal?

The Council will continue to measure progress with preparing and
implementing the Strategic Plan through the Annual Monitoring Report,
published each year, and made available on the Council’s website. Later
in the plan making process, a set of monitoring indicators will be

developed specifically for the plan.

Who will approve this proposal?
(Committee, CLT)

Executive Member for Growth and Regeneration, in consultation with the

Executive Director for Place and Economy.

2: Equality Consideration

In turn, consider each protected group to ensure we meet our legal obligations of the Equality Act (2010).



Protected

General Equality Duty Considerations

Changes

Impact

Different age groups that may be
affected by the proposal in different

ways.

/) abed

within the Strategic Plan, it is considered there is
potential to advance equality of opportunity and
offer general benefit for all age groups. A review of
the plan provides opportunity for the Council to
address the ageing population and to promote
economic growth and tackle inequalities. The Office
of National Statistics estimates that between 2017
and 2041 there will be a significant increase in the
population in the 65+ age groups for North
Northamptonshire (65%, 86,075 people). The
North Northamptonshire Equality Strategy 2021-
2025* estimates there will be 57% more people
over the age of 79 between 2019 and 2029. This is

more than double the national increase.

The consultation document specifically refers to

creating sustainable communities that offer

Grou ps e Include factual evidence of how people in this group may be * What changes can be made to mitigate any negative impact? Delete as appropriate.
affected. o Are there opportunities to remove possible barriers or There can be more than
e Consider the outcomes and processes. disadvantages that a group may face? one answer per
o Does this seek to eliminate discrimination? protected group.
e Does this promote fostering good relations?
Age Within the broad scope of issues to be considered Positive

3 Older Peoples JSNA, Northamptonshire County Council, 2019 https://www.northamptonshire.gov.uk/councilservices/health/health-and-wellbeing-board/northamptonshire-
jsna/Documents/Older%20Peoples%20JSNA.pdf

4 North Northamptonshire Equality Strategy 2021-2025 North Equality Strategy (3).pdf



https://www.northamptonshire.gov.uk/councilservices/health/health-and-wellbeing-board/northamptonshire-jsna/Documents/Older%20Peoples%20JSNA.pdf
https://www.northamptonshire.gov.uk/councilservices/health/health-and-wellbeing-board/northamptonshire-jsna/Documents/Older%20Peoples%20JSNA.pdf
file:///C:/Users/tbegl/Downloads/North%20Equality%20Strategy%20(3).pdf

Protected

Groups

General Equality Duty Considerations

e Include factual evidence of how people in this group may be
affected.

e Consider the outcomes and processes.

e Does this seek to eliminate discrimination?

e Does this promote fostering good relations?

Changes

e What changes can be made to mitigate any negative impact?

e Are there opportunities to remove possible barriers or

disadvantages that a group may face?

Impact

Delete as appropriate.
There can be more than
one answer per

protected group.

g/ abed

services and facilities for everyone including
children and older people. For older age groups,
proximity to services, such as healthcare, is
especially important and/or the means to access
these by public transport. Accessing education,
training, and quality jobs is a key issue for younger
people.

The plan will address housing sizes, types, and
tenures for different groups in the community that
will contribute towards meeting the needs of the
young and older people, including affordable
housing that can have particular relevance to
young people and first time buyers’ and specialist
housing, such as care homes and sheltered
housing, that can have particular implications for

older and younger people.

The scope of the plan offers opportunity to reduce

inequalities within and between communities and to




Protected

Groups

General Equality Duty Considerations

e Include factual evidence of how people in this group may be
affected.

e Consider the outcomes and processes.

e Does this seek to eliminate discrimination?

e Does this promote fostering good relations?

Changes

e What changes can be made to mitigate any negative impact?

e Are there opportunities to remove possible barriers or

disadvantages that a group may face?

Impact

Delete as appropriate.
There can be more than
one answer per

protected group.

contribute to levelling up priority setting objective to
reduce inequalities in age.

The Scope and Issues consultation document
explains that the Strategic Plan will identify land for
employment to strengthen and diversify the
economy and recognises the opportunity to deliver
higher-valued, higher skilled employment, which

will benefit people of working age.

6/ abed

Sex

Is one sex affected more than another

or are they affected the same?

The Strategic Plan is inclusive to all members of
the community and makes no distinction between
genders. No specific opportunities have been
identified within the broad scope of issues to be
considered within the plan that promote equality of
opportunity or have differential impact on both
women and men. However, it is considered that the
scope of the plan offers opportunity to have a

positive impact on all characteristic groups.

Positive




Protected

Groups

General Equality Duty Considerations

e Include factual evidence of how people in this group may be
affected.

e Consider the outcomes and processes.

e Does this seek to eliminate discrimination?

e Does this promote fostering good relations?

Changes

e What changes can be made to mitigate any negative impact?

e Are there opportunities to remove possible barriers or

disadvantages that a group may face?

Impact

Delete as appropriate.
There can be more than
one answer per

protected group.

0] abed

For example, the plan will continue to create and
maintain sustainable communities through the
promotion of ‘place-making’ principles that contain
specific positive references to user-friendly public
and green spaces, buildings and spaces which
promote health and designed to reduce crime and
make people feel safe. This will benefit all groups,
but these references protect against particular
kinds of crimes disproportionately impacting

women.

The scope of the plan offers opportunity to reduce

inequalities within and between communities and to

contribute to levelling up priority setting objective to
reduce inequalities between women and men. The
North Northamptonshire Equality Strategy 2021-
2025° reports that local life expectancy ranges from
77 to 80 years for males, and 81 to 83 years for

females.

> North Northamptonshire Equality Strategy 2021-2025 North Equality Strategy (3).pdf



file:///C:/Users/tbegl/Downloads/North%20Equality%20Strategy%20(3).pdf

Protected

General Equality Duty Considerations

Changes

Impact

It is likely to have an effect on a

particular type of disability? Why?

1] abed

within the Strategic Plan, it is considered there is
potential to advance equality of opportunity and
offer general benefit for those with a disability.
Information from the Northamptonshire Joint
Strategic Needs Assessment identifies that around
21% of the adult population of Northamptonshire
have a disability which is higher than the national

average®.

A key issue for the plan to address is housing

sizes, types, and tenures for different groups in the
community that will contribute towards meeting the
needs of those with disabilities, including specialist

housing.

The consultation document specifically promotes

‘place-making’ principles that encompasses social

Grou ps e Include factual evidence of how people in this group may be * What changes can be made to mitigate any negative impact? Delete as appropriate.
affected. o Are there opportunities to remove possible barriers or There can be more than
e Consider the outcomes and processes. disadvantages that a group may face? one answer per
o Does this seek to eliminate discrimination? protected group.
e Does this promote fostering good relations?
Disability Within the broad scope of issues to be considered Positive

& Adults with Disabilities JSNA, Northamptonshire County Council, 2017 https://www.northamptonshire.gov.uk/councilservices/health/health-and-wellbeing-
board/northamptonshire-jsna/Documents/Adults%20with%20Disabilities%20JSNA%202017.pdf



https://www.northamptonshire.gov.uk/councilservices/health/health-and-wellbeing-board/northamptonshire-jsna/Documents/Adults%20with%20Disabilities%20JSNA%202017.pdf
https://www.northamptonshire.gov.uk/councilservices/health/health-and-wellbeing-board/northamptonshire-jsna/Documents/Adults%20with%20Disabilities%20JSNA%202017.pdf

Protected General Equality Duty Considerations Changes Impact

Grou ps e Include factual evidence of how people in this group may be e What changes can be made to mitigate any negative impact? Delete as appropriate.
affected. o Are there opportunities to remove possible barriers or There can be more than
e Consider the outcomes and processes. disadvantages that a group may face? one answer per
o Does this seek to eliminate discrimination? protected group.

e Does this promote fostering good relations?

and economic opportunity, creating development
that is safe and inclusive, and offers equality of
opportunity and good services for all. A key area of
concern for disabled people includes hate crime
and therefore creating safe and inclusive
environments is considered a key opportunity for
the plan to address. Hate crime statistics show that
incidents directed at people with disabilities have

nearly doubled in five years’. The ‘place-making’

28 abed

principles will also foster community interaction and
ensure people who are more likely to have mobility
issues, through illness, disability, or personal

circumstance, can access the services and facilities

they need.

Gender Reassignment The Strategic Plan is inclusive to all members of Positive
Will there be an impact on trans males | the community. No specific opportunities have
and/or trans females? . i L .
been identified within the broad scope of issues to

be considered within the plan that promote equality

" Hate Crime, England and Wales, 2020 to 2021, Homes Office, 12 October 2021 https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/hate-crime-england-and-wales-2020-to-2021/hate-
crime-england-and-wales-2020-t0-2021



https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/hate-crime-england-and-wales-2020-to-2021/hate-crime-england-and-wales-2020-to-2021
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/hate-crime-england-and-wales-2020-to-2021/hate-crime-england-and-wales-2020-to-2021

Protected

Groups

General Equality Duty Considerations

e Include factual evidence of how people in this group may be
affected.

e Consider the outcomes and processes.

e Does this seek to eliminate discrimination?

e Does this promote fostering good relations?

Changes

e What changes can be made to mitigate any negative impact?

e Are there opportunities to remove possible barriers or

disadvantages that a group may face?

Impact

Delete as appropriate.
There can be more than
one answer per

protected group.

cq abed

of opportunity or have differential impact on gender
reassignment groups. However, it is considered
that the plan offers opportunity to have a positive
impact on all characteristic groups.

For example, the plan will continue to create and
maintain sustainable communities through the
promotion of ‘place-making’ principles that seek to
create strong, vibrant, and healthy communities
where people feel safe, healthy, and socially

connected.

The Office of National Statistics recognises the
need to improve data collection on the LGBT
community, to enable service providers to be able
to direct support to people and groups in the

community.

Race

Are people from one ethnic group
affected more than people from

another ethnic group?

Within the broad scope of issues to be considered

within the Strategic Plan, it is considered there is

Positive




Protected

Groups

General Equality Duty Considerations

Include factual evidence of how people in this group may be
affected.

Consider the outcomes and processes.

Does this seek to eliminate discrimination?

Does this promote fostering good relations?

Changes

e What changes can be made to mitigate any negative impact?

e Are there opportunities to remove possible barriers or

disadvantages that a group may face?

Impact

Delete as appropriate.
There can be more than
one answer per

protected group.

7Q abed

potential to advance equality of opportunity and

benefit people of different races or ethnic groups.

The consultation document specifically considers

the housing needs of travellers. It does not make

specific provision for other ethnic groups but the

plan will support for growth and sustainable

development through the provision of

new/improved infrastructure and continue to

promote ‘place-making’ principles that seek to

create strong, vibrant, and healthy communities.

A key area of concern for many ethnic groups

includes hate crime and therefore creating safe and

inclusive environments is considered a key

opportunity for the plan to address. Hate crime

statistics show that Northamptonshire has one of

the highest offence rates with race as a motivating
factor in the country in 2019/208

8 Hate Crime Statistics, 26 November 2021 https://researchbriefings.files.parliament.uk/documents/CBP-8537/CBP-8537.pdf



https://researchbriefings.files.parliament.uk/documents/CBP-8537/CBP-8537.pdf

Protected

Groups

General Equality Duty Considerations

e Include factual evidence of how people in this group may be
affected.

e Consider the outcomes and processes.

e Does this seek to eliminate discrimination?

e Does this promote fostering good relations?

Changes

e What changes can be made to mitigate any negative impact?

e Are there opportunities to remove possible barriers or

disadvantages that a group may face?

Impact

Delete as appropriate.
There can be more than
one answer per

protected group.

Sexual Orientation

Are people of one sexual orientation
affected differently to people of

another sexual orientation?

GQ abed

The Strategic Plan is inclusive to all members of
the community. No specific opportunities have
been identified within the broad scope of issues to
be considered within the plan that promote equality
of opportunity or have differential impact on the
sexual orientation of individuals or groups.
However, it is considered there is opportunity within
the scope of the Strategic Plan to have a positive

impact on all characteristic groups.

A key area of concern includes hate crime and
therefore creating safe and inclusive environments
is considered a key opportunity for the plan to
address. Hate crime statistics show that
Northamptonshire has one of the highest offence
rates with sexual orientation as a motivating factor
in the country in 2019/20°

Positive

Marriage & Civil

Partnership

The plan is inclusive to all members of the

community. No specific opportunities have been

Positive

9 Hate Crime Statistics, 26 November 2021 https://researchbriefings.files.parliament.uk/documents/CBP-8537/CBP-8537.pdf



https://researchbriefings.files.parliament.uk/documents/CBP-8537/CBP-8537.pdf

Protected

Groups

General Equality Duty Considerations

e Include factual evidence of how people in this group may be
affected.

e Consider the outcomes and processes.

e Does this seek to eliminate discrimination?

e Does this promote fostering good relations?

Changes

e What changes can be made to mitigate any negative impact?

e Are there opportunities to remove possible barriers or

disadvantages that a group may face?

Impact

Delete as appropriate.
There can be more than
one answer per

protected group.

Are people in a Marriage or Civil

Partnership treated less favourably?

identified within the broad scope of issues to be
considered within the Strategic Plan that promote
equality of opportunity or have differential impact

on married or civil partnership couples.

9qQ abed

Pregnancy & Maternity

Are people who are pregnant, or have
a baby of 6 months old or younger,
effected by this proposal?

Within the broad scope of issues to be considered
within the Strategic Plan, it is considered there is
potential to advance equality of opportunity and
offer general benefit for pregnant women or those

who are taking care of infant children. The

consultation document specifically promotes ‘place-

making’ principles, to ensure growth and
development is inclusive, including accessibility to
jobs, key services, and facilities. This will benefit
those who find mobility a barrier particularly

through pregnancy or maternity.

Positive

Religion or Belief

Does the proposal effect people
differently depending on whether they
have or do not have a religion or a
belief?

Within the broad scope of issues to be considered
within the Strategic Plan, it is considered there is
potential to advance equality of opportunity and
offer general benefit for religious. The consultation

document specifically promotes ‘place-making’

Positive




Protected

Groups

General Equality Duty Considerations

Include factual evidence of how people in this group may be
affected.

Consider the outcomes and processes.

Does this seek to eliminate discrimination?

Does this promote fostering good relations?

Changes

e What changes can be made to mitigate any negative impact?

e Are there opportunities to remove possible barriers or

disadvantages that a group may face?

Impact

Delete as appropriate.
There can be more than
one answer per

protected group.

/] abed

principles, to ensure growth and development is

inclusive, including accessibility to jobs, key

services, and facilities. This includes access to

religious buildings which benefits religious groups

who have more opportunities to practice their

religion or faith.

A key area of concern for religious and faith

communities includes hate crime and therefore

creating safe and inclusive environments is

considered a key opportunity for the plan to

address.

Health & Wellbeing
1. Health behaviours (E.g. diet,

exercise, alcohol, smoking)

2. Support (E.g. community cohesion,
rural isolation)

3. Socio economic (E.g. income,
education).

4. Environment (E.g. green spaces,

fuel poverty, housing standards).

Within the broad scope of issues to be considered

within the Strategic Plan, it is considered there is

potential to provide greater emphasis on health and

wellbeing that will provide a general benefit across

all communities.

The plan will have an important role in providing the

necessary infrastructure to encourage physical

Positive




Protected

Groups

General Equality Duty Considerations

e Include factual evidence of how people in this group may be
affected.

e Consider the outcomes and processes.

e Does this seek to eliminate discrimination?

e Does this promote fostering good relations?

Changes

e What changes can be made to mitigate any negative impact?

e Are there opportunities to remove possible barriers or

disadvantages that a group may face?

Impact

Delete as appropriate.
There can be more than
one answer per

protected group.

gQ abed

exercise and health, including accessible open
space, landscape, healthcare facilities, sport and
recreational facilities, and safe walking and cycling

routes.

Creating safe and inclusive communities is
considered a key component of the ‘place-making’
principles which means the plan has potential to
reduce hate crime and improve health and

wellbeing.

3: Equality Impact

Question

Response

What overall impact does the proposal have on the protected groups?

If a negative impact is identified anywhere in section 2, the response will be Negative Impact.

Positive Impact

Does an Equality Impact Assessment need to be completed? No

(Yes, if any negative impact is found.)

Copy attached to relevant report? Yes

Is this document going to be published with the relevant report? Yes




4: Ownership

Question

Response

Directorate

Place and Economy

Service area

Planning Policy

Lead officer's name

Terry Begley

Lead officer’s job title

Principal Planner

Lead officer’s contact details

terry.begley@nortnorthants.gov.uk

Lead officer’'s signature

Date completed

7 February 2022

68 abed

Completed forms must be sent to Equalities@northnorthants.gov.uk



mailto:terry.begley@nortnorthants.gov.uk
mailto:Equalities@northnorthants.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



T6 obed

4 /. _ North
22 Northamptonshire

— Council
North Northamptonshire Council

1 FEBRUARY 2022 TO 31 MAY 2022

Published by: Democratic Services

Leader of North Northamptonshire Council: Councillor Jason Smithers

9 wa)| epuaby



INTRODUCTION

This is the North Northamptonshire Council’s Forward Plan. It is published pursuant to The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012. Its purpose is to provide the required 28 days’ notice of the Council’s
intention to take ‘key decisions’ and to hold meetings or parts of meetings in private. It gives advance notice of all the “key decisions” and
“‘exempt decisions” which the Executive or another body or officer so authorised are likely to take over a four-month period. The Plan is updated
on a rolling monthly basis.

The Members of the Executive are:

Councillor Jason Smithers Leader of North Northamptonshire Council

Councillor Helen Howell Deputy Leader of North Northamptonshire Council
Sport, Leisure, Culture and Tourism

Councillor Helen Harrison Adults, Health and Wellbeing

Councillor Scott Edwards Children, Families, Education and Skills

Cqouncillor Harriet Pentland Climate and Green Environment

Caéincillor Lloyd Bunday Finance and Transformation

C&aincillor David Brackenbury Growth and Regeneration

Councillor Graham Lawman Highways, Travel and Assets

councillor Andy Mercer Housing and Community

Councillor David Howes Rural Communities and Localism

The concept of a “key decision” is intended to capture the most important or significant decisions. “Key decisions” will normally be made at
meetings open to the press and public. The press and public will only be excluded from such meetings as and when the Council’s Monitoring
Officer considers that this is necessary in order to avoid the public disclosure of confidential or exempt information.

The authority has decided that a Key Decision is one which is likely:-
(a) to result in the authority incurring expenditure of which is, or the making of savings which are, significant; or
(b) to be significant in terms of its effects on communities living or working in an area comprising two or more electoral wards in the area
of the authority.”

The Council has decided that significant expenditure or savings are those amounting to above £500,000.

In determining the meaning of “significant” for these purposes North Northamptonshire Council will also have regard to any guidance for the time
being issued by the Secretary of State in accordance with section 9Q of the Local Government Act 2000.



At times it may be necessary for the North Northamptonshire Council to give consideration to items where the public may be excluded from the
meeting. Members of the public are excluded from meetings whenever it is likely that, in the view of the nature of the business to be transacted
or the nature of the proceedings that confidential information would be disclosed. This includes exclusion from access to any pertinent
documents. Details of the exemption categories can be found in the ‘Access to Information Procedure Rules’ section in the Council’s
Constitution. This plan provides advance notice of any items which may be held in private.

Paragraph 5 of the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012 provides for
members of the public to make representations to the Council on why an exempt item should be considered in public, rather than in private.
Persons wishing to make such representations and/or obtain further details in respect of any issues referred to in the Plan should contact the
undermentioned officer.

The Monitoring Officer may also include in the Forward Plan references to such other decisions, which are to be taken by the Council or any of its
Committees or Sub-Committee or officers as they consider appropriate. These will be those decisions that are considered to be significant or
sufficiently important and/or sensitive so that it is reasonable for a member of the public to expect it to be recorded and published.

All general questions or queries about the contents of this Forward Plan or about the arrangements for taking key decisions should be raised with
David Pope, Demaocratic Services.

PI@se email: democraticservices@northnorthants.gov.uk

¢6 ob


https://northnorthants.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=198&MId=507&Ver=4&Info=1&a=1
mailto:democraticservices@northnorthants.gov.uk

February 2022

Subject of the Decision Is it a key Will it Consultation | Anticipated | Report Author Support
Decision: Maker decision? contain undertaken Date of documents (if
exempt Decision: any)
information?
/Reasons for
exemption, if
any
HRA Final Budget 2022-23 Executive Yes No 10 Feb 2022 Executive Director of
and Medium Term Financial Finance
Plan
Gesqeral Fund Final Budget Executive Yes No 10 Feb 2022 Executive Director of
208%-23 and Medium Term Finance
Fit®@ncial Plan
D
Caﬁal Programme 2022-26 Executive Yes No 10 Feb 2022 Executive Director of
Finance
Capital Programme Update Executive Yes No 22 Feb 2022 Executive Director of
2021/22 Finance
Budget Forecast Update Executive Yes No 22 Feb 2022 Executive Director of
2021/22 Finance
Agreement to Implement a Executive Yes No 22 Feb 2022 Executive Director -
Dynamic Purchasing System Adults, Communities
for the Provision of Care and Wellbeing
Home Services for Older
People in North
Northamptonshire
Voluntary Sector Grant Executive Yes No 22 Feb 2022 Executive Director -
Agreements for 2022/23 and Adults, Communities
2023/24 and Wellbeing




Gallery, Museum and Library Executive Yes No 22 Feb 2022 Executive Director -
(GLaM) Site Business Plan Adults, Communities
and Wellbeing
Proposed amalgamation of Executive Yes No Yes — all 22 Feb 2022 Director for
Tennyson Road Infant and relevant Children’s Services
Alfred Street Junior Schools stakeholders
Determination of Admission Executive Yes No 22 Feb 2022 Director for
Arrangements for Local Children’s Services
Authority Maintained Schools
for the 2023 Intakes
Priors Hall Golf Course Executive Yes No 22 Feb 2022 Executive Director -
Adults, Communities
and Wellbeing
Free School Meals Executive Yes No 22 Feb 2022 Director for
Children’s Services
T
Q;\
Of%nic Waste Disposal Executive Yes No 22 Feb 2022 Executive Director —
Place & Economy
(@)
[&x]
WNorse: Fleet Executive Yes Yes — Para 3 22 Feb 2022 Executive Director —

Place & Economy




March 2022

Subject of the Decision Is it a key Will it Consultation | Anticipated | Report Author Support
Decision: Maker decision? contain undertaken Date of documents (if
exempt Decision: any)
information?
/Reasons for
exemption, if
any
Budget Forecast Update Executive Yes No 17 Mar 2022 Executive Director of
2021/22 Finance
Capital Programme Update Executive Yes No 17 Mar 2022 Executive Director of
20%/22 Finance
Q
H%ing Development - Executive Yes Yes 17 Mar 2022 Executive Director -
FO@er Grange Methodist Part exempt Adults, Communities
Chgsch Site, Kettering and Wellbeing
Annual Inflationary Uplift — Executive Yes No 17 Mar 2022 Executive Director -
Adult Care and Support Adults, Communities
and Wellbeing
Tree Strategy and Policy Executive Yes No 17 Mar 2022 Executive Director —
Place & Economy
Pollinator Strategy Executive Yes No 17 Mar 2022 Executive Director —
Place & Economy
Stanton Cross Development of | Executive Yes No 17 Mar 2022 Executive Director —
Governance Arrangements Place & Economy
Towns Fund — Sixth Form Executive Yes No 17 Mar 2022 Executive Director —

College

Place & Economy




April 2022

Subject of the Decision Is it a key Will it Consultation | Anticipated | Report Author Support
Decision: Maker decision? contain undertaken Date of documents (if
exempt Decision: any)
information?
/Reasons for
exemption, if
any
Budget Forecast Update Executive Yes No 14 Apr 2022 Executive Director of
2021/22 Finance
Capital Programme Update Executive Yes No 14 Apr 2022 Executive Director of
2021/22 Finance
b |
J
Agset of Community Value Executive Yes No 14 Apr 2022 Executive Director —
POy Place & Economy
IQ
Coh'munity Asset Transfer Executive Yes No 14 Apr 2022 Executive Director —
Policy Place & Economy
Free School Meals Executive Yes No 14 Apr 2022 Director for
Children’s Services
Adoption of the Cottingham Executive Yes No 14 Apr 2022 Executive Director —

Neighbourhood Plan

Place & Economy




May 2022

Building

Place & Economy

Subject of the Decision Is it a key Will it Consultation | Anticipated | Report Author Support
Decision: Maker decision? contain undertaken Date of documents (if
exempt Decision: any)
information?
/Reasons for
exemption, if
any
Capital Programme Update Executive Yes No 19 May 2022 Executive Director of
2021/22 Finance
“Bldget Forecast Update Executive Yes No 19 May 2022 Executive Director of
8021/22 Finance
D
W@owns Fund — Train Station to | Executive Yes No 19 May 2022 Executive Director —
GRwn Centre Link Road & Place & Economy
Smart and Connected Corby
Combined Projects
Towns Fund — Multi-use Executive Yes No 19 May 2022 Executive Director —




	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 24 January 2022
	4 Houses in Multiple Occupation
	5 North Northamptonshire Strategic Plan Scope and Issues
	Appendix A -  Draft Scope and Issues Consultation Document
	Appendix B  - Equalities Impact Assessment Screening

	6 Executive Forward Plan

